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GLOSSARY

e

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms used under BXEZS BTN THRRIER 18
Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion BT - EF 2 BREFE  DEERAR
and Analysis, Biographical Details of Directors, Corporate Governance 4 - E2F @ HfE LM AFUEMEMAA=
Report, Report of the Directors and Five-Year Financial Summary shall  EA B A FAEMN & E T E -

have the respective meanings set out below.

“2017 AGM”
[—E—tFERRBFAE]

“2018 AGM”
T - N\FERRBFAE]

“2019 AGM”
[—E-NFERRBEFAE]

“AGM(s)’
[IRRBEF KR

“Annual Report”
[ %7 ]

“Articles of Association”

(A E2AA

“associate(s)”

R YN

“Audit Committee”

[ERZEE]

“Board”

E5g

“CEQ” or “Chief Executive Officer”
[1T B4 £t

“CFQ” or “Chief Financial Officer”
(BEEYBE]

“CG Code”
[xERTA

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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AGM held on Monday, 16 October 2017
RZEBE—+tF+A+RABERH)BRTHREEFAE

AGM held on Thursday, 25 October 2018
RZEBE-NF+RAZ+THB(EHMRBITNRRBEFRE

AGM to be held on Friday, 18 October 2019
BRZE-—NAFTATNB(EHR)BTHRRBEFAE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARRBERBEFRE

annual report of the Company for the Year

ARRAFEFERS

articles of association of the Company as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time
RRAZEBERAA (ETRER] BB ITELE)

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
BB EmRAETORE

audit committee of the Board

E=gEZEBE

board of Directors

BEFe

chief executive officer of the Company

RRRZITHRBE

chief financial officer of the Company

ARRZEFHBE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
AR BB 8+ W PT E 2  E E R ST A



“Chairman”

[E£%]

“close associate(s)”

[EFmBEAL]

“Company”

AVNCIR

“Company Secretary” or “Secretary”

[REWE IS WE]

“controlling shareholder(s)”

422 P B 2R

“COQ” or “Chief Operating Officer”
[BEFZ2ER]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“EGM(s)”
[ RFEFRINE ]

“ESG”
[BRE -2 RER

“Executive Director(s)” or “ED(s)”

[ITEE]

“Financial Statements”

[ 75 ¥R &

“Group”
[ & E]

“HKFRS(s)”

(&8 0 7% & 2Rl

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
AR ()

chairman of the Board

EFXEER

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB EmRAME T AR E

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the issued
Shares of which are listed and traded on Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 1470)

E-BEERERAG —HRRAEHESTMKIZEREZBERA
A HEBTRONBERZAER L KX S (B K K5 - 1470)

company secretary of the Company

ARRZ AR WE

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EMARAPTETHRE

chief operating officer of the Company

ARRBEFEER

director(s) of the Company

KRAPESE

extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company

ARFERFHKRE

environmental social and governance

e RER

executive Director(s)

MITE=R

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

AEEARFEZEEMBHRE

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZAN/NS DSBS e NG

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants

BEERMAGREM BB @G ER

—=- ﬂi‘?%&
E-HEERZRERA H 3



"HKS’
%5

“Hong Kong”
[&E]

“Independent Auditors”

[ 18 37 %% 2R |
“Independent Non-executive
Director(s)” or “INED(s)”

(B IERITER]
“Listing Rules”
(e 8l
“Model Code”

[ % <5 81

“Nomination Committee”

[R2ZEg

“Prosper One”

)
“PRC” or “China”
[

“Register of Members”
[Ax R & i

“Remuneration Committee”

[FHEzE =]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
TAR®]

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
AR ()

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BEEEER

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BB RITTHR R

independent auditors of the Company
N RVE S AZ ERD

independent non-executive Director(s)”
BYFEBITES

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEAZ PN GIET 2 B 5 AR B (T RER] - A B ITIE1E)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FARAIMSE TS T RTAZTESETERRINFETA

nomination committee of the Board

EFXeRA%EBE

Prosper One Enterprises Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company
E—NEARAT  ARAIN —BIERRKRE

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of the Annual Report,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
RFEARENE BAFHHE  TEEEE  BFEBITHREES

pes

register of members of the Company

AR B RR A&

remuneration committee of the Board

ExeFMEEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
ARE FEETEK



“SFO”

[78 7 R B &pl)

“Share(s)”
[ P& 15 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
e

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 PfT

“subsidiary(ies)”

M) PGl

“Vice-Chairman”
[ EfE]

“Year”

[RFEE

ll%l!
[% ]k [B DL

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
AR ()

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EREDESNEZH LG KR (AT - BHHSITIELE)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RARRARFREECONE L & B

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EUESE=IN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMAERIHMBER AR

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BEAFmAAME THRE

vice chairman of the Board

EXERIER

year ended 30 April 2019
BHE_Z-NFHNA=THILLFE

per cent. or percentage
ERagse

—E-NEER 6
E-EEERERA R



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Guoqing (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Lee Chun Keung
Mr. Wang Luping

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Chun Keung

Mr. Wang Luping
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Guangyin
Mr. Wang Luping

Nomination Committee

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman)
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Lee Chun Keung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Sir Kwok Siu Man KR, Fcis, Fcs
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
~NAElER (&)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Guoging
Sir Kwok Siu Man KR

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4205, 42th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza
No. 1 Harbour Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
NAElER (&)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

Www.prosperoneintl.com

LISTING INFORMATION

Place of Listing:

Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Stock Code
1470

Board Lot
4,000 Shares
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETRW|E

To Our Shareholders,

EHAHRR :

‘ ‘ On behalf of the Board of Prosper One International
Holdings Company Limited, | hereby present the annual
report of the Company for the Year.

FABLREE_BEREARATESE P
B2 RARREEE 2 EH -

MENG GUANG YIN & E R
Chairman =&

ZE-NEFEER
G osey NG
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FEHRE (B)

During the Year, though the sustained expansion in inbound tourism and
the largely stable local labour market which provided support to retail
sales business, retail sales as well as watches retail remained weak in
Hong Kong. The moderation in watches retail was partly due to the
depreciation of the Renminbi leading to the weakening purchasing
power of the tourists from the Mainland China, and partly due to the
more cautious consumption sentiment because of the trade tensions
between China and the United States and moderating global economic
growth. The franchise licences of the Group’s two major watches brands
expired during the Year, further affecting the performance of this
segment, especially in the second half of the Year when all the above-
mentioned single brand shops had either been closed or were being
handed over to the brand owners.

In March 2018, the Group had commenced its new businesses of trading
of fertiliser raw materials and fertiliser products. The trading businesses
continued to record profits during the Year, which slightly offset the
downtrend impact of watches retail business. As a result of the foregoing,
the Group’s net loss for the Year increased to HK$26.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately HK$6.7 million as compared to a net loss of
approximately HK$20.2 million for the year ended 30 April 2018.

For the Year, our Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$202.3
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$113.2 million from
approximately HK$315.5 million as compared to previous financial year.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately HK$6.7 million or 33.2% from approximately HK$20.2
million for the year ended 30 April 2018 to approximately HK$26.9 million
for the Year.

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

e fes 2
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TREHmE (E)

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.

Due to the continuous integration of fertilizers industry and elimination of
backward capacity, China’s fertilizer industry showed signs of recovery
during the Year. Under the background of capacity structure adjustment,
the over-capacity situation in the fertilizers industry has been alleviated,
which provided certain support to the fertilizer price with the support of
growing demand in agricultural and industrial usages. It is expected that
the overall fertilizers industry will see further improvement in the coming
year. The Group will dedicate to the promotion of product diversification
and the assurance of product quality, so as to strengthen the relationship
with key customers and diversify our customer base, aiming to gain more
business opportunities and further expand our operations into huge
market.

As regards the retail of watches, the Group will remain cautious in
controlling its expenses in particular the rental expense as it still
comprises a major part of the Group’s operating expenses. Inventory
level has been monitored to ensure a stable and healthy financial position.
Under-performed shops will either be closed or relocated to another
location with much cost effectiveness. On the other hand, the Group will
take initiative move to promote and boost its sales through advertising on
television, better liaison with brand owners and also practising more
online marketing by placing advertisements on major social media
platforms such as Facebook and Wechat.

EXSTERMAFRIRMNEMABE -

HRIEMTERBEES LBKRERER
RERNTEEHTEHREETR - EE
EEEBHABNESSR T EHRITERERER
MBERESIGER REERIEZEAEREX
BEHENHNZHEEHERER -ENX
B EHERBEMTERRERE K
= AKE KB ITEE RS R RER
EmEENERRTIBEPNBEALS K
LHEMANEFER SEHEESEZHNER
HeLE-—SERSEZFTEMOMS -

TMETEMS  ASEBE B EEIEH HHA
YO LHEEHeRYX  BARENAMENKASE
EREAYNEERD RMBHELT
FEXKEFUBREBEERBEOMBFEAMRNR -
XERENEHEBEEBERIIREEZT A
AEENS—FH - F—FH AEEBR
MEEFEE BRBTERLERES  BEHE
BRHEBART BB RBREELIE
B8 ¥ & (20 Facebook & Wechat) 1% B &
BETEZMNEREHEREERBHEHES -

“E-NFER
BERERARAA
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHRE (8)

As usual, we shall grasp opportunities to proactively expand our
businesses by seeking target-oriented acquisitions. It is believed that all
of our management and staff continue working cohesively and marking
concerted effort under the strong leadership of the Board to create better
returns for the Shareholders. By leveraging on our core competitiveness,
we can create a promising future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
heartfelt gratitude to the Board members, management and employees
for their wholehearted contributions that enable the Group to face the
challenges during the Year. Last but not least, | wish to express my
sincere thanks to our Shareholders, customers and other business
partners for their ongoing trust and support.

Meng Guangyin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 July 2019

@: Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERN W R D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was approximately HK$202.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$113.2 million or 35.9%
from approximately HK$315.5 million for the year ended 30 April 2018.
Revenue derived from watches business decreased by approximately
HK$130.1 million or 42.0% from approximately HK$309.4 million for the
year ended 30 April 2018 to approximately HK$179.3 million for the Year.
The decrease in revenue derived from watches business was mainly due
to the expiry of the franchise licences of the Group’s two major watches
brands during the Year. In addition, the weakening purchasing power of
the tourists from the Mainland China and the cautious consumption
sentiment adversely affected the performance of this segment. Due to
the commencement of the trading of fertilisers businesses in March 2018,
revenue from it has slightly offset the decrease in revenue of watches
retail business.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of cost of inventories sold and
reversal of provision or provision for slow-moving inventories. Our cost of
sales decreased by approximately HK$98.7 milion or 46.7% from
approximately HK$211.4 million for the year ended 30 April 2018 to
approximately HK$112.7 million for the Year. During the Year, the Group
recorded a reversal of provision for slow-moving inventories of
approximately HK$6.0 million (2018: provision of approximately HK$1.1
million) to profit or loss. The provision for slow-moving inventories as at
30 April 2019 amounted to approximately HK$17.8 million (As at 30 April
2018: approximately HK$23.8 million).

After eliminating the effect of reversal of provision or provision for slow-
moving inventories, cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$91.6
million or 43.6% from approximately HK$210.3 million for the year ended
30 April 2018 to approximately HK$118.7 million for the Year. The
decrease was mainly due to the decline in sales of watches and in line
with the decrease in revenue of watches retail business for the Year.

Bt % [E B8

i &=

AEENWEBREE T \FOA=1+
HIEFEMA31558 BB LMEEL113.28
E B TH359%E R FEMHA 20238 &
B MEEFNABSREREE=_F—
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TNPEH1801 B BB L 842.0% 2 KN F E K
#9179.3 8 B 7B 7T © B &k X 7% AT 15 W 25 Rk
TEZHRAER/ W EE Z &R ED
B RS ERAFEERH - 1IN R E
R A R R E R 55 R EE R
BRE HZIBNEEENTHEE -
REZZFE—NF=ZAHABEHESELE H
TSRS iE e maE T EE B ET
B o

HE B A
RPMEERAETERREEEFREREAK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B E A wm &

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The overall gross profit decreased by approximately HK$14.5 million or
13.9% from approximately HK$104.1 million for the year ended 30 April
2018 to approximately HK$89.6 million for the Year. Our gross profit of
the watches business decreased by approximately HK$31.4 million or
32.0% from approximately HK$98.0 million for the year ended 30 April
2018 to approximately HK$66.6 million for the Year. Our gross profit
margin of the watches business increased from approximately 31.7% for
the year ended 30 April 2018 to approximately 37.1% for the Year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the reversal of provision for slow-
moving inventories during the Year and the higher gross profit margin of
the new single brand shops opened in the Year.

After eliminating the effect of reversal of provision or provision for slow-
moving inventories, the gross profit margin of the watches business
increased from approximately 32.0% for the year ended 30 April 2018 to
approximately 33.8% for the Year.

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs decreased by approximately HK$11.8
million or 12.8% from approximately HK$92.3 million for the year ended
30 April 2018 to approximately HK$80.5 milion for the Year. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the decreases of operating lease
expenses of retail outlets, sales staff’s salaries and allowances, bank
charges and insurance premiums. This decrease was partially offset by
the increases in depreciation, freight, repairs and maintenance, provision
for onerous operating leases recognised and impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment recognised. The decrease in operating
lease expenses of retail outlets was mainly related to better rental rates
negotiated on our lease renewals and the decrease in the number of
retails outlets.

@: Annual Report 2019
(M3 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B E A wm &

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$5.6 million
or 20.8% from approximately HK$26.9 million for the year ended 30 April
2018 to approximately HK$32.5 million for the Year. The increase was
primarily attributable to the increases in the operating lease expenses of
office premises, consulting fee, administrative staff’s salaries, allowances
and other employee benefits and write-off of prepayment and receivables.
This increase was partially offset by the decrease in auditors’
remuneration, Directors’ emoluments and legal and professional
expenses during the Year.

Other expense

Other expense was the break fee paid to Macquarie Bank Limited (the
“Subscriber”) for early redemption of 0.8% convertible notes due 2019
issued by the Company on 31 July 2018.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.5 million or 83.3%
from approximately HK$0.6 million for the year ended 30 April 2018 to
approximately HK$0.1 million for the Year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to a decrease in the level of borrowings during the Year.

Loss before tax and loss attributable to owners of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our loss before income tax increased by
approximately HK$6.9 million or 43.9% from approximately HK$15.7
million for the year ended 30 April 2018 to approximately HK$22.6 million
for the Year.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately HK$6.7 million or 33.2% from approximately HK$20.2
million for the year ended 30 April 2018 to approximately HK$26.9 million
for the Year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s primary source of funds were cash inflows from operating
activities and bank borrowings.

As at 30 April 2019, the Group’s total cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$22.5 million (30 April 2018: approximately HK$54.6
million), most of which were denominated in HK$ and RMB. The current
ratio (calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) of the
Group decreased from approximately 1.7 times as at 30 April 2018 to
approximately 1.3 times as at 30 April 2019. The gearing ratio (calculated
by dividing net debt by total equity) was not applicable as the Group
maintained at a net cash position as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the listing of the Shares on 12 May 2015 (the
“Listing Date” and the “Listing”, respectively) (after deducting the
underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$107.5 million, which have been intended to be applied in the manner
as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BIE B AT ()

During the period from the Listing Date to 30 April 2019, the Group has R EHTHHEHZ_-_Z— L FWNWA =+ H I

applied the net proceeds from the Listing as follows: M- A&EEEH LETmAEREFERIEN
TH#® :

Amount Amount

utilised unutilised

as at as at

30 April 2019 30 April 2019
R=ZFB—HIE R=ZZF-—IF

mMA=+H mMA=+H
EBAZRE XBAZNE

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FAT AT

Expand our retail and sales network BEREMNZTEREEESK 33,640 3,973

Improve our same-store sales growth and HERMHOEEHESEERRAEX

profit margin 12,896 =
Improve our supplier network and enhance ERMEEE M NS

the knowledge of our sales $HE B T A Al 1,381 2,918

Increase our marketing effort INsR T 5 & B 7,227 206

Repay a short-term bank loan with interest EERRRTERENE 37,613 —
Working capital and other general L EESREM—KREERASE

corporate purposes 6,940 582

Total #Et 99,697 7,769

The unutilised net proceeds from the Listing are placed as deposits with T 2 K EB IS KB F B IEATFRFEN
licensed banks in Hong Kong. REBHEFEIEIT -

—E-hEER '| 7
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EARLY REDEMPTION OF CONVERTIBLE
NOTES

On 31 May 2018, the Company and the Subscriber entered into a
conditional subscription agreement (as supplemented by an amendment
agreement dated 20 June 2018 and the second amendment agreement
dated 4 July 2018) (collectively, the “Subscription Agreements”),
pursuant to which the Company had conditionally agreed to issue, and
the Subscriber had conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 0.8%
convertible notes in a principal amount of up to HK$80,000,000 due
2019 (the “Notes”) under a specific mandate granted by the Shareholders
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 26 July 2018. The Notes
comprised two tranches. Each tranche would be in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000. Based on the Floor Price of
HK$0.80 (as defined in the Subscription Agreements), the maximum total
number of ordinary shares of the Company to be issued pursuant to the
exercise of conversion rights attached to the Notes (the “New Shares”)
would be 100,000,000. The Floor Price was subject to adjustment.

Each Note entitled the holder of the Note to convert the Note into New
Shares at any time during the Conversion Period (as defined in the
Subscription Agreements) at the Conversion Price (as defined in the
Subscription Agreements), provided that no Conversion Right (as defined
in the Subscription Agreements) might be exercised at a Conversion
Price lower than the Floor Price.

All the conditions precedent set out in the Subscription Agreements have
been fulfilled and completion of issue of the first tranche of the Notes to
the Subscriber in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000 took place on
31 July 2018 in accordance with the terms of the Subscription
Agreements. On 19 October 2018, the Company early redeemed the first
tranche of the Notes in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000, and the
Notes have been fully redeemed. As at the date of redemption, the net
proceeds from the issue of the first tranche of the Notes have not been
utilized.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 31 May, 20 June, 4 July, 26 July, 31 July and 19 October 2018
and its circular dated 11 July 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

On 26 April 2019, Treasure Ascent International Limited (“Treasure
Ascent”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase of shares agreement with Mr. Lam, the sole
director of Treasure Ascent, pursuant to which Treasure Ascent has
agreed to purchase and Mr. Lam has agreed to sell 100% equity interests
in Fulham Corporation Limited at a consideration of HK$4 million.
Completion of the share transfer took place on the same date. Details are
set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” contained in the Report of Directors of the
Annual Report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 April 2019, the Group had a total of 118 (2018: 140) employees
including Independent Non-executive Directors. The total remuneration
costs incurred by the Group for the Year were approximately HK$35.4
million (2018: approximately HK$36.5 million). We review the performance
of our employees annually and use the results of such review in our
annual salary review and promotion appraisal, in order to attract and
retain valuable employees. Remuneration packages are generally
structured by reference to market norms, individual qualifications, relevant
experience and performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Board to grant share options to eligible
participants with an opportunity to have a personnel stake in the
Company. As at the date of the Annual Report, there was no outstanding
share option granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group had no borrowings as at 30 April 2019 whereas those as at
30 April 2018 were approximately HK$6.6 million. Borrowings of
approximately HK$0.8 million as at 30 April 2018 were fixed at interest
rates from 2.90% to 3.09% per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in
HK$ and unsecured and approximated to their fair values.

As at 30 April 2019, the Group did not have any foreign exchange
contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

As at 30 April 2019, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$24.0 milion (As at 30 April 2018: approximately
HK$23.5 million) for overdrafts and loans. Unused facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$24.0 million (As at 30 April
2018: approximately HK$17.7 million). The banking facilities were granted
to the subsidiaries of the Company and were subject to an annual review
and guaranteed by unlimited guarantees from certain of its subsidiaries.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group does not have a significant foreign exchange exposure and
has currently not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy. The
management will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

On 13 June 2018, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding with Lithium Chile Inc. (the “MOU”) in
relation to the Equity Investment (as defined in the MOU) and the Norte
Program (as defined in the MOU). Due to the less than satisfactory
progress in the negotiations between the parties, the Equity Investment
and the Norte Program had been terminated and hence the investments
will not materialize.

As at 30 April 2019, the Group did not have any plans for material
investments and capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

The Group did not hold any significant investment in equity interest in any
other company as at 30 April 2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no capital commitments as at 30 April 2019 (As at 30
April 2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 30 April
2019 and 2018.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the Year (2018: Nil).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAIL
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Meng Guangyin (F/ZE$R) (“Mr. Meng”), aged 53, was appointed as
our Executive Director on 7 September 2017 and as the Chairman on 28
September 2017. He has been re-designated as an Executive Director,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman on 1 April 2018. He is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Meng had been the chairman and the general manager of Ruixing
Group Company Limited* (s 2 & EHBR A ) since October 2003, and
has been re-designated as the chairman and the chief executive officer
since February 2013. He has more than 20 years of experience in
manufacturing of biochemical products for the agricultural industry. He
holds an associate degree in business administration from Shandong
Economics Management College* (|| 5874 £ & 38 # 38 2205%) in the PRC.

Mr. Meng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Liu Guoging, an Executive Director.
In addition, he is the sole director of Prosper One.

Mr. Liu Guoqing (2| &), aged 48, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 September 2017, as the Chief Financial Officer on 28
September 2017 and as a Co-chief Executive Officer on 18 October
2017; and was subsequently re-designated as an Executive Director and
the Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2018. He obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in corporate management from Beijing Business Management
College* (It REEEIRHEER) in the PRC in July 2005. He joined
Ruixing Group Company Limited* (2 £EAKH AR A=) in August
2003 with his current position as the manager of finance department and
as a deputy general manager since January 2016. He has three years of
managerial experience in financial matters and nine years of managerial
experience in procurement and logistics operations in Ruixin Group
Company Limited.

Mr. Liu Guoging is the brother-in-law of Mr. Meng, the Chairman, the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director.
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Mr. Liu Jiagiang (21/n3&), aged 46, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 September 2017. He obtained an associate degree in
finance from Shandong Agricultural University* (15 22 A2 in January
2016. He has over 20 years of working experience, and spent seven
years thereof in a managerial role. He has worked in Ruixing Group
Company Limited* (3 2 &£ E {7 AR 2 7l) since December 1995 and
has served as the general manager in the investment department and the
manager in the capital operations department since November 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (&) (“Mr. Tian”), aged 48, was appointed as our
INED on 20 September 2017. Mr. Tian is also the chairman of each of
the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Tian has over 20 years of working experience
in the fields of accounting and audit.

Mr. Tian joined ShineWing Certified Public Accountants Jinan Branch* ({5
KR MG AN =TSR (R IR BB A R) BRI 72 PT) in September 1994 and
has been the director of management consultancy department since July
2016, being responsible for the business development and technical
support of consultancy service projects.

Mr. Tian obtained a diploma in financial accounting from Beijing Jiaotong
University (1t773538AE2) (now known as JERZ@AE) in July 1994,
Mr. Tian is a registered certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Luping (E£& ) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 50, was appointed as
our INED on 27 December 2018. Mr. Wang is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wang
completed his legal speciality studies at it RRiEAZ (Beiing Jinggiao
University*) in 1990 and his undergraduate legal studies at China
University of Political Science and Law in 2005. He is a qualified lawyer in
the PRC and has worked as a legal professional for more than 25 years.
He has been a director of |IERAHEZRMERHT (Shandong Faya Law
Firm*) since 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EXEE(E)

Mr. Lee Chun Keung (Z485&) (“Mr. Lee”), aged 42, was appointed as
our INED on 14 December 2018. Mr. Lee is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering from Lehigh
University in Pennsylvania, United States in 1997, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Business Administration from the Open University of Hong
Kong in 2000, and a Certificate in Business (Accounting) from the
University of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing Education
in 2007. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is
currently the Vice Party Chairman of the Liberal Party in Hong Kong and
has been an elected member of the Eastern District Council since 2012.

*  The English transliterations of the Chinese name are for identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

E A
1

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ value through
good corporate governance. The Directors recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures, internal control and risk management
procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures, internal control and
risk management procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted and adhered to the principles
as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has adopted and complied
with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout
the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report save for code
provisions A.1.1, A.2.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code as disclosed in the
Annual Report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
governing the securities transactions by the Directors. Following a
specific enquiry made by the Company on each of the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code
during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of the
Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures
that the requisite financial and human resources support is in place for
the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by the
Board include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s business
plans and strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major
capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring and
reviewing the Group’s corporate governance practices and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Articles of Association. The
Board has established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference. The responsibilities of these Board committees
include monitoring the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensuring that appropriate internal control and risk management are
in place. The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to
management of the Group if and when considered appropriate. The
management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to perform their
responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding and implementing the view that
the Board should include a balanced composition of Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.
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As at 30 April 2019, the Board comprised six Directors, of which the
INEDs in aggregate represented more than one-third of the Board
members. The composition of the Board during the Year is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Guangyin

Mr. Liu Guoqging

Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Mr. Meng Bo (ceased to act on 28 November 2018)*

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung (ceased to act on 18 October 2018)**

INEDS
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Lee Chun Keung (appointed on 14 December 2018)

Mr. Wang Luping (appointed on 27 December 2018)
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael (resigned on 27 December 2018)

Mr. Hu Jinrui (resigned on 1 August 2018)
Mr. Gao Jizhong
(appointed on 22 August 2018 and retired on 25 October 2018)***

Mr. Meng Bo passed away on 28 November 2018.

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung ceased to act as an Executive Director, the Vice-Chairman
and the COO on 18 October 2018 owing to the expiry of his director’s service
contract.

e Mr. Gao Jizhong retired at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of the Annual Report.

Mr. Meng Guangyin is the brother-in-law of Mr. Liu Guoging. Save as
disclosed, there was no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.
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The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in the Board meetings and serving on various Board
committees, all INEDs will continue to make various contributions to the
Company.

Throughout the Year (save for the disclosure in the section headed
“Compliance with the Listing Rules/Code Provisions” below), the
Company had three INEDs, which was in compliance with the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must represent
at least one-third of the Board members, and that at least one of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence in writing
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation and not aware of the occurrence of any event that
would impair the independence of the INEDs, the Company considers
that all the INEDs are independent and have met the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Chairman, being an Executive Director, at least held
one meeting with the INEDs without the presence of other Executive
Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES/
CODE PROVISIONS

Immediately following the resignation of Mr. Hu Jinrui as an INED on 1
August 2018, the Company had only two INEDs, hence failing to meet
the requirements of having (i) at least three INEDs on the Board under
Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (i) INEDs who represent at least one-
third of the Board under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (iii) the minimum
number of non-executive Directors for the formation of the Audit
Committee under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; and (iv) a majority of
INEDs for the Nomination Committee under code provision A.5.1 of the
CG Code. On 22 August 2018, the Company appointed Mr. Gao Jizhong
as an INED and fulfilled the aforesaid requirements of the Listing Rules
and the above code provision.

Immediately following the retirement of Mr. Gao Jizhong as an INED on
25 October 2018, the Company had only two INEDs, hence failing to
meet the requirements of having (i) at least three INEDs on the Board
under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (i) INEDs who represent at least
one-third of the Board under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (i) the
minimum number of non-executive Directors for the formation of the
Audit Committee under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; and (iv) a majority
of INEDs for the Nomination Committee under code provision A.5.1 of
the CG Code. On 14 December 2018, the Company appointed Mr. Lee
Chun Keung as an INED and fulfilled the aforesaid requirements of the
Listing Rules and the above code provision.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each of the newly appointed Directors has received a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and business and is fully aware of the Director’s
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.
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Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company will from time
to time fund and arrange suitable training to all Directors to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their duties and
responsibilities, such that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expense and they have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, the continuing professional
development programmes received by each of the Directors during the
Year is summarised as follows:

)

WBELEEATA ZTREXFEALLE
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ELER - ARA T B E2RES 2 MM
FRIEFIRIE EREARAAE  HEEE
ZEWRBERAARAIEGEEEIGCE R
BARRGEZRIILE SEERAF
EARXZEBEEXZRIAEMELOT

Name of Director

Exps

Executive Directors
Mr. Meng Guangyin
Mr. Liu Guoging
Mr. Liu Jiagiang
Mr. Meng Bo
(ceased to act on 28 November 2018)*
Mr. Liao Pin Tsung
(ceased to act on 18 October 2018)**

INEDs
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Lee Chun Keung
(appointed on 14 December 2018)
Mr. Wang Luping
(appointed on 27 December 2018)
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael
(resigned on 27 December 2018)
Mr. Hu Jinrui
(resigned on 1 August 2018)
Mr. Gao Jizhong
(appointed on 22 August 2018
and retired on 25 October 2018)***

Type of training
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Mr. Meng Bo passed away on 28 November 2018.
Mr. Liao Pin Tsung resigned as an Executive Director, Vice-Chairman and the
COO on 18 October 2018 owing to the expiry of his director’s service contract.

e Mr. Gao Jizhong retired at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, in-house/external
seminars, briefings, conferences, forums and workshops

B: reading materials relating to the economy, general business, corporate
governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities

C: reading newspapers and journals relating to the corporate governance matters,
environment and social issues or director’s duties and responsibilities

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Code provision of A.1.1 of the CG Code provides the Board should
meets regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notice of at least 14 days will be
given to the Directors in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice
will be given in a reasonable time in advance. The Directors are allowed
to include any matter in the agenda that is required for discussion and
resolution at the meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed
on issues arising at each of the Board meetings and to make informed
decisions, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers will be sent
to all Directors at least three days before the intended date of the Board
meeting, or such other period as agreed. The Company Secretary is
responsible for keeping all Board meetings’ minutes. Draft and final
versions of the minutes will be circulated to the Directors for comments
and record respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting and
the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

During the Year, two regular full Board meetings have been held and the
Board has made resolutions by circulation of written resolutions for all the
Directors’ execution from time to time. In view of the simplicity of the
Group’s businesses, regular Board meetings have not been held at about
a quarterly interval during the Year. The Group’s audited consolidated
annual results for the year ended 30 April 2018 and unaudited
consolidated interim results for the six months ended 31 October 2018
together with all corporate transactions (except for the continuing
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connected transactions under the Listing Rules) of the Company made
during the Year have been reviewed and discussed amongst the
Directors at the full Board meetings held in the Year. Together with the
circulation of written materials to keep the Board informed throughout the
Year, sufficient measures had been taken to ensure that there was
efficient communication among the Directors. The attendance of each
Director at the Board meeting for the Year, the 2018 AGM held on 25
October 2018 and the EGM held on 26 July 2018 is set out below:

Name of Directors

EEHE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Meng Guangyin T EREAE

Mr. Liu Guoging BB S A

Mr. Liu Jiagiang 2 hns& 5 &

Mr. Meng Bo (ceased to acton & iREE (R =-F— /1 F

28 November 2018)*
Mr. Liao Pin Tsung (ceased to act

+—AZ=+HHE)"
Bkt R -_F—-—NF

on 18 October 2018)** + A+ )\ HHE)*
INEDs BIYKHITES
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan EREE

FHBEER -_F-NF
T-ATHEEZE)
FBFRER=_F-NF
T-A-+tHEZE)
REAFEER=_F-NF
T A=+t HEE)
HEHEtE(R=_F-NF

Mr. Lee Chun Keung (appointed
on 14 December 2018)

Mr. Wang Luping (appointed on
27 December 2018)

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael
(resigned on 27 December 2018)

Mr. Hu Jinrui (resigned on

1 August 2018) JAA—HEHE)
Mr. Gao Jizhong (appointed on SEREER=-_ZFE—NF
22 August 2018 and retired on /1 A=+ =ZHEZF
25 October 2018) *** WR=ZFE-NF+H
ZF+AHAEME)
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Mr. Meng Bo passed away on 28 November 2018.
Mr. Liao Pin Tsung resigned as an Executive Director, Vice-Chairman and the
COO on 18 October 2018 owing to the expiry of his director’s service contract.

e Mr. Gao Jizhong retired at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has a Board diversity policy (‘Board Diversity Policy”)
which recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. All Board nominations, appointments and re-
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board members and the nomination
policy of the Company. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision of A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. During the Year and up to the date
of the Annual Report, Mr. Meng Guangyin acts as the Chairman and the
CEQO. In the view of fact that Mr. Meng Guangyin has been operating and
managing the Company since 7 September 2017, the Board is of the
opinion that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Group to
have Mr. Meng Guangyin taking up both roles for effective management
and business development. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in
such circumstances. Nevertheless, the Company will look for suitable
candidates and will make necessary arrangement pursuant to the
requirement under A.2.1 of CG Code as and when necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and upon reasonable request, members of the Board
committees are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and
code provision C3 of the CG Code. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee were revised on 1 January 2019 to conform with the
requirements under the CG Code and the Listing Rules. Such written
terms of reference are published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. It comprises all the three INEDs, namely
Mr. Lee Chun Keung, Mr. Wang Luping and Mr. Tian Zhiyuan who is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, and approving
their remuneration and terms of engagement, and handling any
questions regarding their resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and discussing with the external auditors
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;

° developing and implementing a policy on engaging external
auditors to supply non-audit services and reporting to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where an
action or improvement is needed;

@: Annual Report 2019
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° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and financial statements and half-year report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;

° oversighting the Company’s financial reporting system, and risk
management and internal control systems;

° discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
the management to ensure that the management has performed its
duty to have such effective systems;

° considering major investigation findings of internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

° where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness;

o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

o reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

o ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letters; and

o considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the Audit
Committee, amongst other matters, considered and approved (i) the draft
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 October 2018 for presentation to the Board for its
consideration and approval and (i) audit-related matters.
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The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings during

/|:| #&t‘: (/\E)

EBIUNBTEERAFELFRERZER

the Year is as follows: SeH N
No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Name of Directors Eligible to Attend
HERE,
EEREE
EENE EBARE
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) (appointed as HEREE(FRE)(RZFE—FFNA 2/2
member on 28 September 2017 and appointed =+ /\ HEZF A S B R
as Chairman on 27 December 2018) ZE-NFF A+ +tHEZFREE)
Mr. Lee Chun Keung (appointed on TEREE (R _E—NF+=-A+HTAH 1/1
14 December 2018) EZ)
Mr. Wang Luping (appointed on FEFEER=ZF—NEFE+=—A=1+tH 11
27 December 2018) EZ)
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael (ceased to act on A E(R=ZF—NF+=-HA=++H 1/1
27 December 2018) HE)
Mr. Hu Jinrui (ceased to act on 1 August 2018) e E4E (R=_F— NFNH—HHE) 1/1
Mr. Gao Jizhong (appointed on 22 August 2018 S & B EE (R —_ZE—-NFNA=-+=-H N/A T~iE A

and ceased to act on 25 October 2018) EZILTIR-F
The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in that at
least one of the members of the Audit Committee (which must comprise
a minimum of three members and must be chaired by an independent
non-executive Director) is an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The audited Financial Statements have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on 30 July 2019. The Audit Committee is
of the opinion that such consolidated financial statements comply with
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules and that adequate
disclosures have been made. The chairman and the members of the
Audit Committee attended such meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Tian
Zhiyuan, Mr. Wang Luping and an Executive Director, Mr. Meng
Guangyin. Mr. Tian Zhiyuan is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s performance-based
remuneration by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° either: (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management; or (i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
INEDs;

° considering the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;
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i
5,

e  reviewing and approving the compensation payable to the e R RBERRTEST RS RER

Executive Directors and senior management for any loss or TNEELAKRIEBEREZEERBZ
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent BEE UEERZEEEBESOKER—
with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; B AREEESNIER B BE

ARFEE THEKBERE:

o reviewing and approving the compensation arrangements relating e W R ERESIT AL E MBEESK

to the dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to BrEBES AR Z2EBERTHE KA
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and are RZELTHESNER B BX
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and BEESNER 2 BENMESEHE
A .
N

e ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in BERMESEHIHEABEAZAE
deciding his own remuneration. EERG 2 HH -

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee atthe KHFMEZEE @K ERAEFELFTME S

meetings of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is as follows: S NEINT
No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Name of Director Eligible to Attend
H R,
BERUE
EERE ERRE
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) HERLE(ERE) 11
Mr. Meng Guangyin s EREAE 1/1
Mr. Wang Luping (appointed on FEFEER=F—NEFE+=—A=1+tH N/A i
27 December 2018) EZ)
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael (ceased to act on A E(R=ZFE—NF+=-FA=++H 1/1
27 December 2018) HE)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting; and HMZE @R ARFERIT T — K@% R
among other things, reviewed and recommended to the Board for @z k. (Kl Ml EZEzEs =% %
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and ZEZE R SR ETEE A& THHMAEBEE -

senior management. The chairman and the members of the HWEZSeWEIELKELETZ S -
Remuneration Committee attended such meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises two
INEDs, namely Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Lee Chun Keung, and an
Executive Director, Mr. Meng Guangyin. Mr. Meng Guangyin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
but are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs; and
° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executive.
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The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at its
meetings during the Year is as follows:

Name of Director

EEng

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman) THESREE (FE)

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan EREE

Mr. Lee Chun Keung (appointed on TEMAEE(RZFE
14 December 2018) EZ(F)

EZFITR-F
et E(R=ZF

Mr. Gao Jizhong (appointed on 22 August 2018
and ceased to act on 25 October 2018)
Mr. Hu Jinrui (ceased to act on 1 August 2018)

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting and
among other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs, recommended to the
Board for consideration the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the
2018 AGM and the nomination of Directors, with adequate consideration
of the Board Diversity Policy, for the appointment of new Directors. The
chairman and the members of the Nomination Committee attended such
meeting.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
selection, appointment and re-appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures and process:

i The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus
the search effort;
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No. of Attendance/

No. of Meetings

Eligible to Attend

HERE

RERLRE

BRNRH

1/1

1/1

—NFE+ZHA+HH N/A &

—NENHA=Z+=H N/A i F

—NFE+A=+7AHHE)
—NFENA—HBEHE) 1/1
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The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders
with due consideration given to the criteria which include but are
not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest (details of the Board
Diversity Policy set out above);

(c) Qualifications, both academic and professional, including
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in
which the business(es) of the Company and its subsidiaries
is/are involved;

(d) Independence (for INEDs);

(e) Reputation for integrity;

(®) Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the
Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Promptly after considering a candidate’s suitability for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or
by way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;
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The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of
the selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where a NED is considered, the Remuneration
Committee will make the recommendation to the Board on the
policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board, who are not members of
the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate
and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case may be) to be filed
with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include but are not limited to:

47 &8

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
directors of the Group; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this report.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of one year and each of the INEDs
has been appointed for a specific term. The extension of the terms or the
renewal of any such service agreements or letters of appointment, where
necessary, will be in compliance with the Listing Rules and any other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service agreement
or letter of appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries other
than the agreements/letters of appointment expiring or determinable by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment
and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation
and will be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall
continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
The Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to
ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who
wishes to retire and does not offer himself for re-election. Any further
Directors so to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment and so that as between the
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers had been the Independent Auditors since the
listing of the issued Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
12 May 2015. On 27 April 2017, PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as
the Independent Auditors. On the same date, the Board appointed Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”) to fill the casual vacancy as the
Independent Auditors until the conclusion of the 2017 AGM. Baker Tilly
was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM as the
Independent Auditors to hold office until the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

Baker Tilly resigned as the Independent Auditors on 18 April 2018. On 3
July 2018, the Board appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong (“Deloitte”) to fill the casual vacancy as
the Independent Auditors until the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

Deloitte resigned as the Independent Auditors on 14 December 2018. On
19 December 2018, the Board appointed Fan, Chan & Co. Limited to fill
the casual vacancy as the Independent Auditors until the conclusion of
the 2019 AGM.

Please refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2015 and
the announcements of the Company dated 27 April 2017, 18 April, 3 July
and 19 December 2018 for further details.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
AND REMUNERATION

The statement of the Independent Auditors about their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Financial Statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of the Annual Report.

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Independent
Auditors in respect of the Year is set out below:

Services

BR 3%

Audit services EANZ R
Non-audit services FE A% AR 7%
Total 4t

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
Financial Statements.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

BUZBMEERME
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Fee paid/payable

BN EBNEA

HK$’000

TET

1,000

1,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the Group’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management policies and systems established by the management of
the Company (collectively “internal controls”).

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

For the Year, the Board has conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. Such review has been made by discussion with the Audit
Committee, management and the Independent Auditors from time to
time, but at least once a year. The Board will put in place to address the
identified area that will be enhanced. The Board considers that the
existing risk management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective.

The Company also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
systems, and has procedures in place to keep information confidential
and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal
structures have been designed to prevent the misuse of inside
information and avoid conflicts of interest.

The Audit Committee has received the summarized information on the
risk management and internal controls conducted by the internal audit
team. The work carried in relation to the identified areas are summarized
as follows:

(i) the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

(i) a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

(i)

an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the Year.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed with the
management.

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and is
fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls within
the Group to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group’s
assets, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the
systems in place are adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced promptly. The procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and the Company’s website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the Executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the
financial controller of the Company are authorised to communicate
with parties outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Sir Kwok Siu Man KR (“Sir Seaman Kwok”) is the Company Secretary.
Sir Seaman Kwok supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and
relevant flow of information is maintained amongst members of the Board
and that all procedures have been adhered to in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Sir Seaman Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”) to be the Company Secretary on 28 September
2017 and since then, Boardroom has been providing certain corporate
secretarial services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The primary person
at the Company with whom Sir Seaman Kwok contacted during the Year
was Mr. Liao Pin Tsung (“Mr. Liao”), an Executive Director, the Vice-
Chairman and the COO, and after Mr. Liao’s cessation to act in the said
positions on 18 October 2018. Ms. Mancy Wai, the financial manager of
the Company, in respect of the company secretarial matters.

Sir Seaman Kwok delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant
continuous professional development training during the Year pursuant to
rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a
key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its Shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its announcements,
circulars as well as annual and interim reports. The corporate website of
the Company has provided an effective communication platform to the
public and the Shareholders.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the Year, the Company has not made any change to its
constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the Company’s
constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a Shareholder’'s communication policy with
an objective to provide our Shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as Shareholders in an
informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company.
The Company would review the Shareholders’ communication policy on
a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
Shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include AGM, EGM, annual report, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for demanding a poll will be included in circulars
accompanying. The notice convening a general meeting and such
procedure will be read out by the chairman of the general meeting or his
delegate. The AGMs and other general meetings of the Company are
primary forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The members of the Board, Board committees and the
Independent Auditors are present to answer Shareholders’ questions at
the AGMs. The Company will provide Shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable the Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). As a channel to promote
effective  communication, the Group maintains a website where
information on the Company’s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors may write
directly to the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong
with any inquiries.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company will
invite/has invited representatives of the Independent Auditors to attend
the 2019 AGM and the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee to attend the
forthcoming 2019 AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions regarding the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the independent
auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditors’ independence.

Mr. Meng Guangyin, the Chairman, did not attend the Company’s 2018
AGM due to other essential business engagements. In order to ensure an
effective communication with the Shareholders, the Chairman authorized
and the Directors attending the 2018 AGM elected Mr. Liu Guoging, an
executive Director, to chair the meeting on behalf of the Chairman. The
respective chairmen and/or members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee and a
representative of the Independent Auditors were present at the 2018
AGM to answer relevant questions from the Shareholders. To mitigate
the above, future AGMs will be scheduled earlier to avoid the timetable
clashes.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or move
resolutions at the AGMs under the Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands. However, Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM”
set out below.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EGM

Written requisition of any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board or the Company
by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the basic
principles in determining the distribution of the dividends to the
Shareholders (“Dividend Policy”).

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

(i) the financial results and financial condition of the Group;
(i) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;
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(v) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company (v) AAFRAEEEKERATZIREE
and each of the members of the Group; and AMEAHYIRFEE R
()  the general economic conditions and other internal or external (v) EEELEAR R R ATALE ANER Y £K

factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Law of the Cayman lIslands, the Articles of
Association and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time and reserve the
right at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, and/or modify
the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
specific period.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules,
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure that information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling the Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and Shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue to use its reasonable endeavours in
maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate governance
level and quality.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEWME

The Directors present to the Shareholders their report for the Year and
the Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the retail and wholesale of
watches in Hong Kong, and (ii) the acting as a sales and trading agent of
fertilisers raw materials and related fertiliser products, and public
consumption products.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 200 of the Annual Report.
The summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

FAIR REVIEW OF BUSINESS

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year and the likely future development in
the Group’s business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of the Annual Report.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the “Five-Year Financial
Summary” of the Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, which may
materially adversely affect its business, financial conditions or results of
operations. As some of the projects are located in the PRC, the political,
economic and legal developments and changes to government policies
in the PRC may have a significant impact on the Group.
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The financial risks of the Group included currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. These financial risks are elaborated in Note
34b to the Financial Statements of the Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group. Save as
disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” contained in the Annual Report and below and
as far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in the places where it operates in all
material respects during the Year and up to the date of the Annual
Report.

On 3 December 2018, Treasure Ascent International Limited (“Treasure
Ascent”’), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Marine [talia Limited (“Marine
ltalia”), an independent third party pursuant to which Treasure Ascent
purchased a new Azimut 60 yacht (“the Yacht”) from Marine ltalia at a
price of HK$14 milion. The purchase price had been satisfied by
Treasure Ascent as to HK$10 million in cash and as to HK$4 million by
way of trade-in of an old yacht.

The purchase of the Yacht constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company and should have been subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, but
the Company did not make a timely disclosure in respect of this
discloseable transactions due to unintentional and inadvertent oversights.
The Company made an announcement dated 23 July 2019 (the
“Announcement”) regarding this discloseable transactions as a remedial
action.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers,
Shareholders and other stakeholders. During the Year, there was no
material or significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers,
customers and/or other stakeholders.

Employees

The Group recognizes that employees are the valuable assets for the
Group’s continuous development. The Group has complied with the
applicable labour laws and regulations by regularly reviewing the
remuneration package of the Group’s employees by reference to market
standard, and conform to the performance, qualifications and experience
of the employees.

Customers

The Group is committed to providing good quality service to its
customers and enhance the loyalty of customers by increasing the
interaction with customers through social media platforms, which provide
a good foundation to our Group’s overall performance in the long run.

Suppliers

The Group has maintained good relationships with its suppliers. The
Group cooperates with suppliers that are committed to quality of
products.

Shareholders and other stakeholders

The Group has made an ongoing dialogue with its investors and
Shareholders as provided in the “Investor Relations” and “Shareholders’
Communication” paragraphs of the Corporate Governance Report of the
Annual Report.

ESG

The Group continually reviews its ESG efforts, corporate governance and
risk management practices with the aim of creating and delivering
sustainable value to all key stakeholders. The Group has been exploring
more efficient opportunities to reduce the consumption of resources in
order to reduce its impact on the environment.
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A separate ESG report is expected to be published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later than three
months after the publication of the Annual Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 87
of the Annual Report. The Board does not recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the Year (2018: Nil).

The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who have waived or agreed
to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 90 of the Annual Report and Note 41 to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At as 30 April 2019, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1.3 million (2018: approximately HK$37.1 million).
Details of the movements in the distributable reserves during the Year are
set out in Note 41 to the Financial Statements.

AGM

A notice convening the 2019 AGM will be issued and dispatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner required by the Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the 2019 AGM, the Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 15
October 2019 to Friday, 18 October 2019 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the 2019 AGM, the non-registered
Shareholders must lodge all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at Room
2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 14 October 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 97% of the total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 63.3% of the total
purchases.

For the Year, the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for less than 30% of the total sales.
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Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued Shares) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 25
to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Guoging

Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Mr. Meng Bo (ceased to act on 28 November 2018)*

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung (ceased to act on 18 October 2018)**

Independence Non-executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Tian Zhiyuan

Lee Chun Keung (appointed on 14 December 2018)

Wang Luping (appointed on 27 December 2018)

Chan, Yee Ping Michael (resigned on 27 December 2018)

Mr. Hu Jinrui (resigned on 1 August 2018)

Mr. Gao Jizhong (appointed on 22 August 2018 and retired on
25 October 2018)***

* Mr. Meng Bo passed away on 28 November 2018.
- Mr. Liao Pin Tsung ceased to act as an Executive Director, Vice-Chairman and
the COO on 18 October 2018 owing to the expiry of his director’'s service

contract.

Mr. Gao Jizhong retired at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.
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Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Lee Chun
Keung and Mr. Wang Luping were appointed as Directors by the Board
on 14 and 27 December 2018, respectively. However, pursuant to code
provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by Shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company. Thus, they will retire from office as Directors
and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors will retire by rotation at each AGM. In addition, code provision
A.4.2 of the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
stipulates that each Director shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years.

Pursuant to article 84(2) of the Articles of Association, the Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the
number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire
and not to offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who
have been the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-elected or
appointed Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot. Any Director
appointed by the Board pursuant to article 83(3) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Director or the number of
Directors who are to retire by the rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Guoging
and Mr. Liu Jiagiang will retire from office as Directors by rotation and are
eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and is not aware of any event undermining their independence. As
such, the Company notes that all the INEDs are independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary,
independent auditors and other officers shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or any or them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
any potential legal action against the Directors and senior management in
respect of potential legal actions that may be incurred in the course of
performing their duties.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 22 to 24 of
the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Meng Guangyin, Mr. Liu
Guoging and Mr. Liu Jiagiang has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of one year, which may be terminated by
not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

The service agreements of Mr. Meng Guangyin, Mr. Liu Guoging and Mr.
Liu Jiagiang had commenced on 7 September 2017 and were renewed
for a further one-year period commencing on 7 September 2018.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2019 AGM has
an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term of one year, but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office.

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan had entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of one year commencing on 20 September
2017, which was renewed for a further one-year period commencing on
20 September 2018. Mr. Lee Chun Keung and Mr. Wang Luping have
entered into letters of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
one year commencing on 14 and 27 December 2018, respectively. Their
appointment letters may be terminated by not less than one month’s
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to
the Financial Statements, respectively. The remuneration packages of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board as described on pages 37 and 38 of the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the Year are
set out in Note 37 to the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the
end of the Year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, no contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of
any significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the end of the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 April 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, were as follows:

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest

Exps 56 EEMEE

Mr. Meng Guangyin
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Notes :

1. The 600,000,000 Shares were held under certain trust units under the
Changjiang Absolute Return China Fund (the “Changjiang Fund”), in which Mr.
Meng, the Chairman, the CEO and an Executive Director, was beneficially
interested via his wholly-owned company Prosper One, and managed by
Changjiang Asset Management (HK) Ltd (the “Changjiang Asset”), Mr. Meng’s
asset and fund manager. Mr. Meng is the sole shareholder and sole director of
Prosper One and is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 Shares in which
Prosper One is interested under the SFO.

2. The percentage of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table
above is calculated on the basis of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 April
2019.

3. All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2019, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or (c) pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at 30 April 2019, the following
entity (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest
REREE 53 EatE

Prosper One (Note) Beneficial owner

= — (#tit) ERERA

Notes:

1. The 600,000,000 Shares were held under certain trust units under the
Changjiang Fund, in which Mr. Meng, the Chairman, the CEO and an Executive
Director, was beneficially interested via his wholly-owned company Prosper One,
and managed by Changjiang Asset, Mr. Meng’s asset and fund manager. Mr.
Meng is the sole shareholder and sole director of Prosper One and is deemed to
be interested in the 600,000,000 Shares in which Prosper One is interested
under the SFO.

2. The percentage of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table
above is calculated on the basis of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 April
2019.

3. All interests stated above represent long positions
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2019, so far as the Directors or
chief executive of the Company are aware, no other persons (other than
a Director or the chief executive of the Company) or entities had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the management
of the Company and their respective close associates that compete or
may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as set out in Note 37 to the Financial
Statements also constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, and are required to
comply with the relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules despite certain deviations therefrom by the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions and
connected transactions of the Group for the Year as disclosed in the
Announcement are set out below. Save as disclosed below, the
Company has complied with relevant disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules.

(A)

006 B8

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
subject to reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements

Purchases of fertilisers from Shandong Runyin
Biological and Chemical Industry Company
Limited* LU 5EER £ 1L TR B R A 7 (“Shandong
Runyin”)

During the two years ended 30 April 2018 and 2019, the Group
had purchased fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers
from Shandong Runyin for resale to independent customers. The
transaction values for the purchases amounted to approximately
HK$49.0 million and approximately HK$186.9 million for 2018 and
the Year, respectively. As the Group is considered to be acting as
agent in respect of these purchase and sale transactions, the
Group recognised commission income of HK$5,526,000 (2018:
HK$1,357,000) for acting as agent in these transactions.

Shandong Runyin is ultimately controlled by Mr. Meng Guangyin (“Mr.
Meng”), the Chairman and an Executive Director and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore, Shandong
Runyin is an associate of Mr. Meng and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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Purchases of fertilisers from Shandong Nongyuan
Nongzi Company Limited* [UREFREEER DT
(“Shandong Nongyuan”)

During the Year, the Group had purchased fertilisers from
Shandong Nongyuan for sale to independent customers. The
transaction values of the purchases amounted to approximately
HK$316.6 million. As the Group is considered to be acting as agent
in respect of these purchase and sale transactions, the Group
recognised commission income of HK$9,686,000 for acting as
agent in these transactions.

As Shandong Nongyuan is a company owned as to 51% by Mr.
Meng Xiao (“Mr. Meng Xiao”) who is a cousin of Mr. Meng,
Shandong Nongyuan is, therefore, deemed to be a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
subject to reporting and announcement, but being
exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirements

Resale of crude glycerine to Shandong Fufu New
Material Technology Company Limited* [LERfEE #1
MEREFHER A T (“Shandong Fufu”)

During the Year, the Group had purchased crude glycerine from
independent suppliers for resale to Shandong Fufu. The transaction
value for the sales amounted to approximately HK$7.0 million. As
the Group is considered to be acting as agent in respect of these
purchase and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission
income of HK$570,000 for acting as agent in these transactions.

Shandong Fufu is ultimately controlled by Mr. Meng and is,
therefore, an associate of Mr. Meng and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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Sales of fertilisers by the Group to Shandong
Nongyuan

During the Year, the Group had sold fertilisers purchased from
independent suppliers to Shandong Nongyuan. The transaction
values of the sales amounted to approximately HK$2.8 million. As
the Group is considered to be acting as agent in respect of these
purchase and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission
income of HK$297,000 for acting as agent in these transactions.

As Shandong Nongyuan is a company owned as to 51% by Mr.
Meng Xiao, Shandong Nongyuan is, therefore, deemed to be a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Non-exempt connected transactions subject to
reporting and announcement, but being
exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements

Acquisition of Fulham Corporation Limited
(“Fulham”)

On 26 April 2019, Treasure Ascent, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase of
shares agreement with Mr. Lam Man Wah (“Mr. Lam”), the sole
director of Treasure Ascent, pursuant to which Treasure Ascent
had agreed to purchase and Mr. Lam had agreed to sell 100%
equity interests (the “Sale Share”) in Fulham at a consideration of
HK$4 million in cash (the “Fulham Agreement”). Completion of the
share transfer took place on the same date.

Mr. Lam is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company (including
Treasure Ascent). Therefore, he is a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EETRE (B)

(D) Non-exempt connected transactions subject to

reporting, announcement and the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements

Pursuant to the Fulham Agreement, Treasure Ascent had also
granted the call option to Mr. Lam, whereby Mr. Lam shall have the
right to require Treasure Ascent to sell the Sale Share and such
other shares to be issued by Treasure Ascent from time to time at
the then market value, which right is exercisable by Mr. Lam during
the period of ten years from 26 April 2019.

Given that the call option will be exercisable at the sole discretion of
Mr. Lam, the grant of the call option was classified as if the call
option has been exercised. As the consideration payable by Mr.
Lam upon exercise of the call option would depend on the then
market value of the Sale Share, the exercise price of the call option
could not be determined at the outset. Based on the market value
of the Sale Share as at the date of the Fulham Agreement, it was
expected that the grant of the call option would constitute at most
a major transaction of the Company and should have been subject
to the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Due to unintentional and inadvertent oversights, the Company did not
make timely disclosure in respect of the aforesaid transactions and did
not seek independent Shareholders’ approval for the aforesaid
paragraphs headed “(A)” and “(D)” as required under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the Announcement.

The English transliteration of the Chinese name is for identification purpose only.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEeRE (B)

Confirmations from the INEDs and the Independent
Auditors

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions mentioned in (A) and (B) above (the
“Continuing Connected Transactions”) and have confirmed that the
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group and on normal commercial terms
or better. The Group did not have written agreements for some of the
Continuing Connected Transactions but there were sales and purchase
invoices for all transactions. For those transactions with written
agreements, save that the prices might be different from those specified
in the agreements, they were entered into according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders as a whole.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, the auditors of the Company, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For
the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
has provided a letter to the board of directors with the following findings:

(i) the Group did not seek approval from the board of directors of the
Company on the Continuing Connected Transactions prior to
entering into such transactions;

(i) the Group did not have formal written pricing policies governing the
Continuing Connected Transactions;

(i) the Group did not have written agreements for some of the
Continuing Connected Transactions but there were sales and
purchase invoices for all transactions. For those transactions with
written agreements, they were conducted on prices different from
those specified in the agreements; and

(iv)  the Group did not set any annual cap for the Continuing Connected
Transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules.
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The Company considered the Continuing Connected Transactions were
ordinary business activities of the Group and therefore did not seek
specific approval from the board of directors of the Company for the
transactions. Although the Group did not have written pricing policies
governing the Continuing Connected Transactions, it has been its policy
to determine the price with reference to the then prevailing market price
as quoted from reputable websites in the industry. For those transactions
for which the Group did not enter into written agreements, they were
entered into based on verbal agreements with suppliers or customers. As
the sales and purchase orders are normally satisfied by batches
according to customers’ demand and it is the market practice to
determine the actual price based on the then prevailing market price
when the products are ordered for delivery, the actual transaction prices
might deviate from the prices specified in the agreements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem its listed securities nor did the Company or
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at least 25% of the issued
Shares in public hands) during the Year and thereafter up to the date of
the Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the service contracts of the Executive Directors)
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders on 21 April
2015 (the“Adoption Date”).

1. Purpose and Participants

The primary purpose of the Scheme is providing eligible participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and
to motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants (“Participants”)
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. Participants of the Scheme include any
employees, Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors (including
INEDs), advisors, consultants of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

2. Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding
options lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company) must not exceed 80,000,000, representing 10% of
the issued Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date and the
date of the Annual Report.

3. Acceptance of offer

Offer of a share option shall be deemed to have been accepted by
the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company within 28 days from the date of the offer.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EETRE (B)

Subscription price

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board at its sole discretion and notified to
the Participant and shall be no less than the highest of () the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date on which a Share Option is granted,
and (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date on which a Share Option is
granted; and (i) the nominal value of a Share.

Maximum entitlement of Shares of each
Participant

(i) Subject to paragraphs (i) and (i) below, the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to each Participant (except for the parties
mentioned in paragraph (i) below) (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue.

(i)  Notwithstanding (i) above, any further grant of share options
to a Participant in excess of the 1% limit or the limit
mentioned in paragraph (i) below (as the case may be) shall
be subject to approval by our Shareholders in general
meeting with such Participant and his or her close associates
(or his associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting. The number and the terms of the
share options to be granted to such Participant shall be fixed
before the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be taken as
the date for grant for the purpose of calculating the
subscription price.

(i) A substantial Shareholder or an INED, or any of their
respective associates can be granted options comprising the
underlying Shares (a) in aggregate not over 0.1% of the
issued Shares or (b) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant, not in
excess of HK$5 million.
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Exercise of share options

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon which a
share option was granted, at any time during the option period after
the share option has been granted by the Board but in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. A share option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, after which period no further
share options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall
in all other respects remain in full force and effect and share options
which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

On 4 January 2018, the Company offered to grant to certain Participants
options, which were subject to, among others, a refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit for the Scheme (the “Refreshment”). The
resolution concerning the Refreshment was duly passed by the
Shareholders at an EGM held on 25 January 2018.

As the offers of the grant of the share options had not been accepted by
the selected Participants in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Scheme, no share options were granted and outstanding as at 30
April 2019.

No share options were exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Early Redemption of Convertible
Notes”, the Company has not entered into other equity-linked
agreements that (i) would or might result in the Company issuing Shares
or (i) would require the Company to enter into any agreements that would
or might result in the Company issuing Shares during the Year and up to
the date of the Annual Report.
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RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares of the Company.

MATERIAL EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group did not have any material subsequent event after the reporting
period and up to the date of the Annual Report.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee had reviewed the draft Annual Report (including the
audited Financial Statements) and the draft annual results announcement
of the Company for the Year and had submitted the same to the Board
for approval. Members of the Audit Committee are of the opinion that the
Financial Statements, the results announcement and the Annual Report
have been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory provisions and that
an adequate disclosure has been made.

CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December
2018 in relation to the change of independent auditors, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong resigned as the
Independent Auditors on 14 December 2018. With effect from 19
December 2018, the Board appointed Fan, Chan & Co. Limited (“Fan,
Chan”) to fill the casual vacancy as the Independent Auditors until the
conclusion of the 2019 AGM.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2019 AGM to re-appoint
Fan, Chan as the Independent Auditors until the conclusion of the next
AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.
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PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON R4k = & F
WEBSITES

The Annual Report while available for viewing on the website of the Stock AR F 3 Al R & B E18 F iR BIFT R E 7
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at = 1 B 32 Ffr 49 v (www.hkex.com.hk) & 7Z& 2
www.prosperoneintl.com in due course in the manner required by the &) 43 ufi (www.prosperoneintl.com) i &

Listing Rules.

By order of the Board AEZESm

Meng Guangyin ==

Chairman HER

Hong Kong, 30 July 2019 B ZTE—NhEtA=1+H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 % B

SAIR G T ERAT A IR 8]
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PROSPER ONE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosper One
International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 87
to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 April 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B B R & ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HRESSER

Valuation and impairment of inventories

FEEER #E

Refer to notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial
Statements
ZIRMir e AN E4K19

We identified valuation and impairment of inventories as a
key audit matter because the balance of inventories was
significant and the assessment of which involved
significant estimation of uncertainty.

BB FERERRERIREREFEE RA
EFEERBRBEAR BEFMGPIREANTHEE M
R

During the year, retail and wholesale of watches in Hong
Kong remained the main business of the Group which is
subject to changing consumer demands and market
conditions. The Group had inventories of gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$53,151,000 and an
allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$17,868,000 as at 30 April 2019.

FRA REBETHERZEIABDE E£EN
FEEL MERTERBEZIHEEZTRKET
SRR ESNTE - R_ZE-—NAFOA=1TH &
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNAREFTEERARETER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories included:

BMBEEEIRRERTET

TEEREMENEFRFEE

Understanding and evaluating the appropriateness of the
basis used by the management in estimating the level of
inventory allowance, taking into consideration the inventory
aging as at 30 April 2019 and subsequent sales after 30
April 2019;
REBR_ZE-—NFHA=THZFEERKE_Z
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRgEETER

In estimating the impairment of inventories, it is the
Group’s policy to review the net realisable value of
inventories periodically with reference to aging analysis,
seasonality and current market conditions. These
assessments are subject to uncertainties arising from
changes in market trends, customer tastes and current
business environment.

EEAFERER SESENBRXREZ2EREKS
fr-ZFEMEREMTRAERERFENAI &R F
B - ZEFAEEXMEBE TPmREZARE
EBRRREHEROTEE LT E -

78 82 T 5T E 18 (@)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERANAREATEERRESNSTE

e Examining the basis of management policy relating to
allowance for slow-moving inventories;

s EEHEBHFRERBEEBNEEBRNIKE

e Assessing and examining the assumptions and estimates
applied by management in determining the allowance for
slow-moving inventories; and

s HEREEEREEETFHTFERBRMEANR
&R fhE R

e Comparing the carrying amount of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to their net realisable value through review of
subsequent sales. Where there are no subsequent sales of
the respective inventories subsequent to the year end date,
we challenged management on the assumptions and basis
applied to estimate the net realisable value of the
inventories, corroborating the explanations with aging,
consumer demand and market trends of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.

s BBEERRBEHERFTERENERARTER FELET
MEEBR - BEXFERFEAERBRIERERSE
K R EEEBMAAFERNERFERRANRR
REE UERREFERNRE HEEZTRKETS B
B(RAEERMEVEFABRELEREEHELEN -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B B R & ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRETSER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
provisions for onerous operating lease contracts

¥ BERZEHEREELEHESERE
Refer to notes 4, 15 and 23(c) to the consolidated
financial statements

ZIgAR S A EImMEMN T4 - 15%23(c)

We identified provision for onerous operating leases as a
key audit matter because the identification and
measurement of onerous operating leases involve
exercise of significant management judgement in
estimating the future operating performance of the
outlets. The Group has entered into several operating
lease contracts for rental of its retail outlets. At the end of
each reporting period, management performs
assessments of the lease contracts for the retail outlets
with non-cancellable elements in order to identify whether
any provision for onerous operating leases is necessary.
The assessments involve identifying and estimating the
unavoidable costs of meeting lease obligations that may
exceed economic benefits expected to be received.
BAREERLHERBARI RBREFFE R
HEBMNRAELEERLLEHE P LR E#HARK
KEXRBFENMHEATEEAEH - EXEEAR
TERMMAEAEUZBEKLEHEAN NI HREH
K BEEEHARTARHEEZRNTERHESES
RETTE UBREEERTEREELEHEED
Em Bt - BB EF MRl R b5t R EE 7] ae i
A E T U EERN S HE B E SRR
BENER -

Annual Report 2019
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78 82 T 5T E 18 (@)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMMARBESTPEERRESTER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessments of the provision for onerous operating leases
and of the impairment of leasehold improvements in retail
stores included:
BHMNEREREMETEEREHERERTEENHA
EMEEEREMGNEAEFBE

assessing and challenging the Group’s onerous lease and
impairment assessment models. This included challenging
management’s identification of impairment indicators and
indicators of onerous leases, as well as considering
whether the discounted cash flow forecasts on a store-by-
store basis supported the carrying value of the relevant
non-current assets and whether they exceeded the
estimated values of the future financial obligations under
the non-cancellable operating leases. We also considered
whether the Group’s impairment assessment indicated that
a reversal of a past impairment provision was required;

A kERE ESEMNZEHERMETGEE %
TEEREREEEANREREEREEHERE
UREZRZEUHRBEEREFAREXHHBIERD
BEENRABEMEERERBEB I AIAHEHLEHER
THRKRMBEEINEFE -ZMTEE ESEH
BEFEEERAFTERED BT RERRE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRESER

We also identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment used by the Group in its networks of
retail outlets for selling of watches in Hong Kong as a key
audit matter. These non-current assets for retail stores
mainly represent leasehold improvements and the
impairment assessment of these assets was a key audit
matter because of the significance of the carrying
amounts of the related assets as well as the exercise of
significant judgement of management involved in the
assessment of the recoverability of the assets. Such
judgement is mainly focused on estimating future store
performance of the retail outlets.

BMITEHR EEERERBHEBENTEEHER
FTRZWE BWMEKREEHEORENGENRBESE
HAEH - TEENREERDEETEREEDE
K BEBRRHEEEENREENEALKRERE
TS8P k2% & E vl i o 14 89 7T 1f 59 22 K ) B -
ZEBENRENGA - HBRESZTE - @A
MFEEPREAZTEENRRIERHRE

The estimation of future operating performance of the
Group’s outlets is dependent on, amongst others, the
industry landscape, overall economic environment and
the competitors in local markets. Management assesses,
on a yearly basis, whether there are events indicating a
potential impairment of the non-current assets and that
the operating lease is onerous.
EEEMENRREERENMEFTIRR(EF B
BITERRE BRBLKBRRERAMMIS N HFH
F-EREBFAEEOFTERANERDEE T
HEBENFELKEHESRES -

78 82 T 5T E 18 (@)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNAREATEERRETEE

comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including future revenue,
margins, staff costs and rental expenses, with the historical
performance of these retail stores, management’s forecasts
and new operating lease terms;

HHMBRReREEARMANKEERA(BERK
WA -FBE BINAREEER HZETEENE
SRE ERENEIRFNLEHERIETHE:

evaluating the discount rates adopted in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against those of other similar
retailers;
FRS2REAMBEUZTEFINEREXFHERSRER
BEBERATREARLEE X

performing a sensitivity analysis of both discount rates and
cash flows and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charge and whether there were any indicators
of management bias;
ETHRELAERENBRESNTREEREER
MEANTERREAFEEMAEEERENTR

“E-NFER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B B R & ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRESER

Based on the assessments, management is of the view
that a provision for onerous lease contracts of
HK$4,561,000 should be recognised as at 30 April 2019
and that an impairment loss for property, plant and
equipment of HK$4,404,000 should be recognised for
the year.

ERNZENE BEERAR-_ZE-—AFHEA=
THREBER -BEZEEHEES L B #H4561,000%
TOMAFREERDE BELEREZREER
4,404,000/ JT ©

OTHER MATTER

R EITEIE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNAREATEERRETEE

e considering the Group’s disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of impairment testing of
leasehold improvements in retail stores, including the key
assumptions and sensitivities to changes in such
assumptions, with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

s 2ZHRITFEAUNENR - ER BEEERESHK
BETAHTEENEEMERENRENFABBHN
RE ERIZEBERMEERREDOGAML -

H =18

4= A

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2018 BHE T - /\AFH A=t HILEFENLEA/
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion ¥ %5 ¥ & M 5 — X BUEI F| &t - & HED R

on those statements on 30 July 2018.

OTHER INFORMATION

“TE-NFELA=ZTHEHRZFHRRERAK
RIERER -

HtfER

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. B AR EZTFTHEHMES AT - HM(ER
The other information comprises the information included in the annual &% HERFHRAHZHEL 15 ~8 ?‘E
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and ~ #= & B4 75 3 & K {9 #0 12 B AP ) &=

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the HFIHGE M B HRRN B R AL TR EE At
other information and we do not express any form of assurance 152 @ HFINMAHZEEMESEREM

conclusion thereon.

@: Annual Report 2019
(M3 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

=)

neE=

H 5 B )

REBRMEGEEMBERENEAMS
ZMMETRMEEMEE  EHBRE
TOERHEMEESTEEAMBRRA
BMPEEAERETHMTHENBAFEERXR
EERXEUFFEERBERRANBER -
ERRMASHTHIE NREMZAHE
MESFEERERRL BRMAFT2HSE
ZE2E-EEHE RFRBEEFNSRE -

ESRAEERGESUBR
REAAREZERE

BERAREFAREARBEEASIMAEMR
2B BB B ®EEA) R EB(RA B K
FOMNBEERERBEEEMTBEZHRAMB
BER UHERRRBGRAYBRRZHE
BAFERRRFRERMEB EKXE
RRIAFAHZABEF AR -

ERBEAMBREE EFAETME
EREREEE LN CEERERT
BEAKECEENZEE  URERR
BEERGHER RISEEEE B
EEERAGEEE ARELLER
BRFE -

\
/

REEEREEE BESEZUBHREA
e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B B R & ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

@: Annual Report 2019
(M3 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B B R & ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

B & W?f%‘f%/*,\ﬂ%xiﬁ%
EiE 2 B 1E @
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B B R & ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Rooms 1007-1012

10/F., K. Wah Centre

191 Java Road

North Point

Hong Kong

30 July 2019

Lam Wai Yan
Practising Certificate Number: PO6906

@: Annual Report 2019
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AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
K E At 2 W s 3R

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses
Other expense
Finance costs

LLoss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year attributable to owners of

the Company

Other comprehensive expense

= A
N

ca N/
Z N
H fm

[tem that maybe reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss

— Exchange differences arising from translation

of foreign operations

Total comprehensive expense for the year

attributable to the owners of the Company

Loss per share — basic and diluted

(HK cents per share)

Y
& AR

EH

H Al U a1 K B5 18
HE MDA
THFHAX

H A =

BhE A

B 5% Al /&5 18
FTS BRI XX

ZN/NSIE YW
18
H fih 2 5 X2

HEREFHDHEEERDARB

—BREBIEBREL

HIE X Z 5

ZN/NSIE DN
2 H X 485

BRER - EAREE
(BRE)

Forthe yearended 30 April 2019 B Z =T —NFMWA=THIEFE

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018

BZE HE

—2-hF  —TN\F
B=+HIt WA=+HI

FE FE

Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Mo 5E FHExT TBT
5 202,349 315,501
(112,744) (211,409)

89,605 104,092

7 1,913 53
(80,515) (92,349)
(32,508) (26,902)

8 (1,000) —
8 (128) (572)
9 (22,633) (15,678)
10 (4,260) (4,570)
(26,893) (20,248)

(17)

(27,046) (20,265)

14 (2.53)
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Asat30Apri2019 RZT—hFMA=+H
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
MA=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBTT
Notes (restated)
B o (g =5)
Non-current assets EMENE E
Property, plant and equipment Y BB RERE 15 6,197
Rental deposits HEZS 20 1,381
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE &= 16 1,924
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss ~ #&#A F{EE A B0 &
B & B 17 =
Club membership (EEoi-— 18 —
9,502
Current assets mENEE

Inventories FE 19 35,283 51,958

Trade receivables, other receivables and JEWE 5 5/78 - HAbfE
prepayments Wk TE & T8~ 5 IE 20 137,615 137,354
Tax recoverable A U [ 7 18 587 1,896
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIBESEFEY 22 22,483 54,603

195,968 245,811
Total assets 488 235,015 255,313

Capital and reserves 1% AR K f# e
Share capital A% AR 27 8,000
Reserves k] 102,647
Total equity g e G 110,647

@R, Annual Report 2019
(2™ Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
kr e MRk ()

Asat30April2019 R—ZZE—AFMA=1+H

30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
MA=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FBTT
Notes (restated)
M 7 (g =5)

Non-current liabilities EmEBBEE
Provision for other liabilities and charges EMmaERS HEE 23 793
Obligations under finance leases BEMEEEE 26 342
1,135

Current liabilities mEBE

Trade and other payables B 5 & H i FE {5 508 23 137,808 136,002
Amount due to ultimate holding company FES AR IERR A B /IR 24 8,620 -
Bank loans IRITE 25 = 5,806
Obligations under finance leases BEMEEE T 26 = 485
Tax liabilities MIEE & 731 1,238

\r
)
mh
e
R
2

Total liabilities

¥
/

149,227 144,666
235,015 255,313

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 199 were approved 87 £ 1998 Y ZE R AU BHRERE N -
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 July 2019 and — AE+t A=+t HHB=E=< R K#ET

mt

CR}
>t

Total equity and liabilities FER ) SE=Li

kv

are signed on its behalf by: BoWHNTITRERES:
Mr. Meng Guangyin Mr. Liu Guoqing
HEBRE 2B E X%
Director Director
BFE BFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

Fortheyearended 30 April2019 HZE-—ZT—NAFMNA=THILtFE

a! 1AW TN

\
.\

:
H

N e~

i
5,

Share Share Capital ~ Statutory Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
KA BRORE EBEXRE LERE ELMGE RITEE EREH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHL FTHT THL THL THEL THET TET
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Bet1)  (Wat2)

Balance at 1 May 2017 WZZT—+ERHA—
BH &% 8,000 118,368 24,094 — — (19,550) 130,912

Total comprehensive ~ 2HEB X &%

expense
Loss for the year ENER = - - - - (20,248) (20,248)
Exchange differences B BINERFE L

arising on translation of )€ ¥, = 5

foreign operations - - - = (17) - (17)
Total comprehensive 2ARAY A
expense = = = = (17) (20,248) (20,265)

Balance at 30 April 2018 A=ZZ—NEMA=

1 B #) & 84 8,000 118,368 24,094 - a7 (39,798) 110,647
Impact on initial BRAERBENBR
application of HKFRS 9 % B F 957 K&/
(Note 2a) WEYY, - - - - - 2,187 2,187

Adjusted balance at RZE-\ERA—

1 May 2018 A B AR E s 8,000 118,368 24,094 — (17) (37,611) 112,834
Total comprehensive ~ 2HEMB X &%

expense
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (26,893) (26,893)

Exchange differences B BINER T E &
arising on translation of A& ¥ Z %8

foreign operations — — — — (153) - (153)
Total comprehensive FEAYEHE
expense - - — — (183) (26,893) (27,046)
Transfer to statutory BRELTHE
reserve — — — 700 — (700) —
Balance at 30 April 2019 R=Z—hEMA=
+BREH 8,000 118,368 24,094 700 (170) (65,204) 85,788

@R, Annual Report 2019
(M3 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

== N/
/ ~ /m:un EE
I\‘/ N 4‘ /|\E

For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —F —

Note 1:

The balance of capital reserve comprises the following:

On 23 June 2011, Mr. Lam Man Wah (“Mr. Lam”), one of the Previous Controlling
Shareholders of the Company as defined in note 1, acquired the non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary of the Company from an independent third party. The difference
between the fair value of the equity interests acquired and the consideration paid
amounting to HK$1,610,000 was credited to the capital reserve.

On 31 October 2014, Mr. Lam agreed to waive part of its lending to the Group. The
waived amount of HK$14,282,000 was recognised as deemed capital consideration
and credited to the capital reserve.

On 9 April 2015, the Company allotted and issued 5,833 and 94,166 of its shares to
Ms. Ma Lili and Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited, a company owned by the Previous
Controlling Shareholders, respectively, to acquire their respective shareholding interests
in the subsidiaries of the Company.

As a result, a balance of HK$3,902,000 was credited to the capital reserve representing
the difference between the carrying value of the non-controlling interest of Jenus Top
International Limited acquired over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof. The combined share capital of the other
subsidiaries of the Company of HK$4,300,000 was reclassified to capital reserve upon
the completion of the group reorganisation.

Note 2:

As stipulated by the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the Company’s subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of their profit after tax as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to equity owners. The statutory reserve can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up capital by
issuing additional capital to the owners in proportion to the owners’ existing equity
holdings, provided that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

1AW TN

OF CA

SEBHERNER

For the yearended 30 April 2019 EZ=_Z—NFMNA =+ HIEFE

Operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Net loss on write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Allowance for write-down of inventories (reversed)/
recognised

Provision for reinstatement costs recognised

Provision for onerous operating leases recognised

Write-off of prepayment and receivables

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Decrease in inventories

Increase in rental deposits, trade receivables,
other receivables and prepayments

(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Income tax paid
Income tax refund

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

Notes
e 5
)
B %1 A 5 1B
MATRIEEFE :
A& B AR

M- BERREITE
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WETE  BEEREZ
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HEME BEEREZ
Uit 28 )% 58
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B (BE) TR MRTFE
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rE(FR)/ RS
BN PrE T
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#
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¢

SH

Year Ended
30/4/2019
HZE
—E-NAF
B=+H
LtEFEE
HK$’000
FET

(22,633)

128
4,522

4,404
382
(2,099)
(69)

(5,968)
408

4,561

2,731

(13,633)
22,643

(10,724)

(4,022)

(7,366)

Sp

g
Tz S

oY\ N

W

ATLT Ceis

3

Year Ended
30/4/2018
BH=E
—ZT-N\F
WMA=+H
IEFE
HK$'000
FHBT
(restated)
(geE5)

(15,678)

572
2,674

85

1,120
399

321

(10,558)
44,815

(118,667)

111,796

27,386
(796)
3,541

30,131
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CONSOLIDATED STATEIVIENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

meBRenRER(E)
Forthe yearended 30 April2019 & Z =L —NFMNA=THILEFE

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
HZE H=E
—E-NE —T—N\F
BA=+H WMA=+H
I1: ;5 IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER T T
Notes (restated)
e 5 (geE5)
Investing activities BEEE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME BERKE (23,291) (1,888)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE . FEF'% &L
equipment BT 15 303 720 95
Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash acquired) U B B % 7 (F0 B Y B
iR &) 32 (3,854) -
Net cash used in investing activities KEFEESFMRARE T8 (1,793)
Financing activities el ﬁ BB
Proceeds on issue of convertible note ST IR EIE TS KIB 39,200 =
Repayments of convertible note ?51 IR EHE R (39,200) —
New bank loans raised %ﬁ E54R ?T B = 44,845
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (5,806) (54,614)
Increase in amount due to ultimate holding company JFE A SR AR AR A Bl FRIE
3% 40 8,620 —
Repayment of principal elements of a finance lease BERREHAENEASH D (827) (465)
Interest paid 211 F &2 (128) (572)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities MEEBG(FTA)
e IFHE (10,806)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents B RREEEBYH
CRLA), /18 1% 28 (31,932) 17,532
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes S FE FE R 2 B 5L 2 (188) —
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FUNHeRREEFEY
the year 54,603 37,071
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, FROREEREEEY
represented by bank balances and cash (BN : RITHEBRES) 22,483 54,603

ZE-NFER
BEBERZERERIA ” QS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a5 B 8 AR MY R

For the year ended 30 April 2019 & Z= —

GENERAL

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

On 28 July 2017, Prosper One Enterprises Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Meng Guangyin, entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with Tic Tac Investment Holdings Company Limited, a
company owned by Mr. Lam and his spouse, Ms. Chan Ka Yee,
Elsa (hereinafter referred to as the “Previous Controlling
Shareholders”) for acquiring 70.625% interests of the Company.
The transfer of the shares was completed on 15 August 2017.
Accordingly, Mr. Meng Guangyin became the new ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company and presently he is the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive director
of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Prosper One Enterprises Limited and its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Meng Guangyin.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the”Group”)
are the retail and wholesale of watches in Hong Kong, and acting
as agent (for financial reporting purposes) in the sales and trading
of fertilisers raw materials, fertilisers products and public
consumption products. The address of the principal place of
business of the Company is Unit 4205, No. 1 Harbour Road,
Convention Plaza Office Tower, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HNANCMLSUUEMENTS(CONﬂNUED)

re M RAR MR

(%)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE —ZT—NWFMWMA=+HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
has issued the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

K (IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards
(‘HKAS”) 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

2. BRI RKZIEITEEBY
HHEER(FEY B R
HZEL])
KEERFEERZHTRE
B EAMBREEL
BERSHMASEEMTIRAEE

SETEEE R ER T REEE
E/%Eﬁ%#&%a‘%ﬁu
BEEMBREEN 2@IA
ek
BRMBRERL KAEEPEAHKZER
F155% BEEET
5 (BRGBRE SEXZRENAE
ZBZE®)
-2EF2R
BERMBREERN RENARZGZFHER
E25% (BRI A) iTE
BEENBBREERY —HEAZEYEHE
F45: (BT AK) ERIZIFEBI AR
BB BHREER
B4R RBAEY
B G AR tERBEBABHEES
£ 285 (BFIA) F-MEZE
—E-NFHHZ
FEN#EZ R

Eteg
(& .JZK)

BEBEREERERA

SHERIELOR BEREYE

—EB-NEER
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAHFIREIEEEBY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHREEN(EBBER
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) £ A ) @)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 are
discussed in notes 2a and 2b respectively. The application of the
amendments to the other standards listed above in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior year and on the disclosures

RMEEMBREENFIORLEE
M HRELENFEISHRZIEZEE DR
ff FE2afobafm - RAFE - A £
MEMERZEFTAERNEEAFE
NE—FEZMBRIRMAMRARE

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2a. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting.

Change to classification of financial instruments
HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three new
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), superseding HKAS
39’s categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The measurement categories for
all financial liabilities remain the same.

The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based
on the business model under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.
Further explanation of how the Group classifies and measures
financial instruments and recognises related gains and losses
under HKFRS 9 is included in the accounting policies detailed
in note 3.
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m
Q é Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

G EMBERRABIHRBELEEXN

=
TE -

2a. BRMBHREEDFN
THMIA
BERV B RS ERNFIRDH T
ARZT-N\F-A—BHZE
ez FEHERRKEFE S
HRIEK T H T A #ARAR
E A eRmIAGtZMBE=
@rnm: DERGE  RERY
HEE e

ERMIADEZEE

BEAVBHREERFIRS S B
BENDRZKHER  HBHX
A8 UBRAFEFAEME
mRmEE R AR A FEF AR
@it 8 RELPBRBREE GG
HAFIRPRHEINHRKRE &
AEEWHE AJHHESRE
ERNAE R EFABRGFEZ
TRMEEZHEA -FMBETRAER
BRI AE -

BEAVBHREEAFIRET &
MEEZOBNEREESRE
EZEBRULREANASRE
- -ERAKENFARERE
RS ENEIRHEMTA
AT M Rt 8 DA K T 3R 4E A U
s REBRNE—SRE FHIN
B RESFEAL A & ST BRK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ira MR ER AR MY et ()

Fortheyearended 30 April2019 #HZE—_Z—NFMNA=F+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAHFIREIER BB
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BmEER(FBBBR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) 8 |) @)
2a. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 2a. & B B & IR 5 % B £ 93K

Change to classification of financial instruments
(Continued)

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group’s
payment for life insurance policy of HK$1,600,000 were
reclassified from trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments to financial assets at FVPL as the investment
cannot meet the HKFRS 9 criteria as solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
The difference of HK$2,187,000 between the carrying
amount of the insurance policy under HKFRS 9 (represented
by its fair value as at 1 May 2018 of HK$3,787,000) and the
amount previously carried at amortised cost as at 30 April
2018 of HK$1,600,000 were adjusted to financial assets at
FVPL and accumulated losses at 1 May 2018.

Change to impairment loss model

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with
the “expected credit loss” (“ECL”) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier
than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

REXERAEBMBREELSE
O H AHATEHREIRMESDR
7 B 7% 3R 5 2%E Bl B Q5% MY AZ 4
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B A& E1,600,00078 TH A S
REMNKERKREZEZHE  HAi
JERFIERENREBETHEA
EAFEFABSENESHEE -
BIEE S HREERFI5 -
REMEAERER=ZZ—N
F£H A —HKAFES787,000%
T2 5) K %t B IR 2 8 A A B BR
MeB(R-_ZT—/\FWOA=+
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2a. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Where the effect of discounting is material, the expected cash
shortfalls are discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following basis:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12 months

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowance for trade receivables is always measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. ECLs are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

The Group concluded that the adoption of the ECL model
under HKFRS 9 has no material impact on the Group.
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Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

(%)

TFS34 oo
il 2 30

\
/!

—E-NFOA=+tHILFE

Th
=

\

~
B

ZmA

gy
i
e

X
SFA
ISR

o
=

D«

EBMBRSE
él"ﬂIE-\ (#8)
BHEEFB 2 E (E\
BRI T EEKR E'Jé\.ﬁﬁﬁ)‘%
NTERABEENERM KL H
EOERRRERR e EHE -

Bt RMEEBREE BN R
RHARAREBEAXEERRKY
REHOHME -

RETEBRHEEEBEER - X5 5
EEREEFTNHBZKARSE
HEER TR SR A IR A] 52
ARt WEBEEBEBAESH
IR B AR 0 B AR R A AR 5L FEDRI Y

BHMEEEBRKBRMAATEES

= .
2 -

- VREAEHEEER:
12 ARNAIREELENELD
M MERN A EE

- ZHEHEEEE: ERY
EEREEANEMRERE Z
EHFHAMA AR
EHMERNAEHEE -

EWESRENEBEERE EIE
HEREHEREEEENESE
FE-RBEAY BHEES
BOREASEENELEEEIE
AR (E B R TR W
BEEBEANEERZRE E A
K IEFT — B E RN AR (A AT

A

%€ B Z5 95K

AEERSREBEREMBEREE
AFREMBEHEERERA
VTEHANEEELEEFNEAY
.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ire M ERR M A

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 HZE —ZT—NWFWMA=+H ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2a. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Transition

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that
existed at 1 May 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the cumulative
effect of the initial application as an adjustment to the opening
consolidated accumulated losses as at 1 May 2018.
Therefore, comparative information continues to be reported

under HKAS 39.

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date
of initial application, 1 May 2018.

Non-current assets
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Current assets

Trade receivables,
other receivables and
prepayments

Capital and reserves
Accumulated losses

ERBEE
BATEG ABREL
CREE

RBEE
EWE SR Eft

YRR R B ROR

R K ik
Z5tER

Carrying
amounts at
30 April 2018

R=ZE-—N\&F
B=tH
ZEEE
HK$'000
THT
(restated)
(E=5)

137,354

39,798

(%)

2.

classification

2a. B & B & | EE R FR
ﬁHKIE:E
L/J;{'
AEBCREBEREREER-Z
—\FRA—HEFEMNIER B
ERB BT BEHRELERFEIN -
AEEEHERERANRGTFE
BRAER_ZE—NFRA—HH
FHERE RFTEBEAE - Bl
%?éﬂ%mﬁﬁﬁmauﬁm
F9W T IAZ TR -

TREEREREMBHREER
FOR N BB ST EAFI9RRN
—“E-NFHEA-B(EXRER
B eRMEENDBERGE -

Carrying
amounts under
HKFRS 9 at

1 May 2018
R-E-N\&
BA—-REE
B 3 5 % B
FIHET
ZEEE
HK$'000
FHT

Re- Re-
measurement

BENOR
HK$'000
THET

EXTE
HK$'000
THET

1,600 2,187 3,787

(1,600) = 135,754

-~ (2,187) 37,611

:% ﬁiﬁi&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE —ZT—NWFMWMA=+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

T

TFS54 S
it 38

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) Al ]) @)

2b. HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with 2b. &8 B 5% R 5 22 B 551557
customers REEFEHAMNKE
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered ERVHBREEDEISHRBS
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, BEREREI8HHUA(ERE
and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the HEEYWRIERERSFEESRN I
accounting for construction contracts. #=)REBEAGFEANF11RELE

BEXH(EFTRZERNN SRR

BHE) e

The initial application of HKFRS 15 has changed the NETERBEBTEREELE
recognition and measurement of revenue, the presentation of 155 E B W 2 R R =
the consolidated statement of financial position and the ,ZV? EMBRRARZEN AR LA
information required to be disclosed in the notes to the RGEEMBERERMNFHREEZE
consolidated financial statements, to enable users of the B AR BEmERERE
consolidated financial statements to understand the nature, BREREMI AN ES 2
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows BB HE - £% - - BEHE
arising from contracts with customers. N AT M o

Previously, revenue arising from construction contracts and MRl BIES A REBERSTE
provision of services was recognised over time, whereas A 2 W a B B Fﬁ Eﬁ R MiLE S
revenue from sale of goods was generally recognised at a mArBWERTENE mTE R
point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the % K [0] TR 58 7% % BERER &
goods had passed to the customers. HKFRS 15 introduces a BB EmEERFE 155 5| A RE
five-step approach under which all revenue is recognised TH B AR EFE
when the customer obtains control of the promised good or BEN 2 EGEE R IRE 2 12 4
service in the contract, either at a single point in time or over (o AE EREEE s — BRE
time. M) #ERR ©

I'l“ Annual Report 2019
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2b. HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with

customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group
has an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group
recognises the related revenue before receiving the
consideration or being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services in the
contract, then the entitlement to consideration is classified as
a contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer pays consideration,
or is contractually required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. For a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant impact
on timing and measurement of the Group’s revenue
recognition as at 1 May 2018. “Advance receipt” will continue
to be separately disclosed in the disclosure note on “Trade
and other payables”, but presented therein as contract
liabilities instead.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint VVenture*

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and revised HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.

The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to
make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS
17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17.

Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group will
adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 May 2019. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative
effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses at 1 May 2019 and will not restate the
comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the
standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12
months as of the date of initial application.

As at 30 April 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$43,757,000 as disclosed in note 31. An
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$7,920,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS 17 applied. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be included
in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the assets acquired at the
respective fair values, and the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 May
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring control over a product or
service to the customer at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled under that performance
obligation, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time. HKFRS
15 identifies the following three situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over
time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance, as the
Group performs;

(i)  When the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced;

(i)  When the Group’s performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ire M ERR M A

For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 May
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
If the contract terms and the Group’s activities do not fall into any
of these three situations, then under HKFRS 15 the Group
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under
the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(%)

T-AFMA=TAILEE

3.

B RE5THE @)

EFEF) (&
Ka% l:|n\,JE/JI‘I&ﬁZIZL(f=
MEHNGREAERFE I T BRE
MzE=1BEL ~A&EEBBRESEHE
B 75 3R &5 2RI 1558 1 K — R fE 2

(Bl EE 2 ) R EE E Rk
% H) I 2 e

EHNPHORERRATZESEE K
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ$§gﬁiégﬁim
BEEFPMAERESN R AJEK
ERAARAERGBFEIROR  BEE
AMERENHEBATITEERZH &R
R MERM R RSSET KA BE
HIRBB AR AEE -

HeaWTFEaREFPREHERBE —FH
EXARMEMNZ(BNERERKRE
EEP)MBER S Al sk ER
CHOREFE UERAAEEER
FPrZEREARABRRNEBRERS
FRERNERERR - HAENTES
SBAEERHEEARENSVRES
o AIREZEOERN RSB IER
BERMEAFENEGNRBEMELEDN
%'J,%\Faﬂi'ioﬁi%i)f'ﬁ?xiﬁﬁﬁgﬁkﬁﬁ
mEAMBZBELR—FOHEH
HERTEREANRE LD wa@E
REAVBHRELEAEISHROA 1T
HIRETHE -

“E-NFER
BERERBERQA

109



o8]
()=
il
1]

110 5w

RO TSN S T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

Iy

\

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B % ¥R R MY A (4R)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 May
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

Sale of merchandise

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised at a
point in time when control of the products is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the products.

@
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 May
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

(©)

()

Trading of fertilisers raw materials, fertilisers products and
public consumption products (the “fertilisers and other
products”)

The Group determines that the nature of its promise is to
arrange for the fertilisers and other products to be provided
by the suppliers to the customers and hence, for financial
reporting purposes under HKFRS 15, the Group is an agent
not a principal. Commission income is recognised at a point
in time when the services are rendered.

Service income on repairing watches

The Group provides repair services on watches to customers,
which is a single performance obligation. The service income
is recognised at a point in time when the service is
completed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 May
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 May
2018) (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income and commission income are recognised when
services are provided.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible asset

Club membership with indefinite life is carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. WWhen a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised
and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to
exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 since 1 May 2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, FVOCI, and FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HNANCMLSUWEMENTS(CONﬂNUED)
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable from 1 May 2018)”.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.

(%)

3.

T-AFMA=TAILEE

B RE5THE @)

€@ T A m)
RENHMERMEE(H =S
—-NFEE—HRBEBANSE;
B3R5 E B S5998 1 T MY X
®) @)

NETEARETE (4

R ) 7 R Mv%ﬂé?“@mﬁﬁ

TREENAGNRERERHLAE
BERZTeREENEBEN K
VEEBAMEKD RAEEC LI E
RTABREARMEKDHNAITERE
EHEWE SRS AEBE Y F R
AFEMLE(HEREEL FRAF
Ef ABR)RHGRAFESREE -
YEEANBEKRD XAKEC UL E
AATRESZNRIEE S REBETR
BEEEMBHREENE 1R E
BRBEB-_ZE-N\FHLA-RELEER)]
BB RETNRHERTE -

RESTHEERBHKARIZAFE
ARt EEKEETOBREE
FELEMBER/RINAERAREERS
ME(HESINAERFE] HE

A =
& e

AEEEETREENEHENEL
MAERESREEAELER SR
E-XBRABERSRERE KA
UBMERRERE HESRMEER
MEFRE °

“E-NFER
BERERBERQA

12]



o8]
()=
il
1]

177 5

RO SN S T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

vy

Wi as

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR e B 15 R BT aE ()

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVOCI (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at FVVOCI (debt instruments) (Continued)

For debt investments at FVOCI, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at FVOCI (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at FVOCI
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at FVOCI. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at FVPL are also recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

(%)

T-AFMA=TAILEE

3.

B RS HE @)

€@ T A um)
RENHMERMEE(H =S
—-NFEE—HRBEBANSE;
B3R5 E B S5998 1 T MY X
®) @)

H#%EH 2 (@)
BAFEAFANBREGSBEE
BATEIABXNSREERER

FEEZSREE N THRARIE

ERAFEAABRSZNEREELS
HREARAFEFENSREE -

MeMEERNOHRIELEHOER
MmEE: AZEREERDBERF
FEE -TETABEDCORZBEA
ATETR) T BERFIEER - R
EWEER/RBRE BT AKIN -RE
MEVIIFENREEERS RSN
EMEER A FEF ARG D BEE
% mAmEBRN - EE W LT
MEH T AR DB REEHKAKIZ

NP EF AR EE R - 76 50H
BRBEERDEFHE IEHTA
BN T EREIEE RSB FER
ABH -
BAFEFABGNESREERRTF
ERFEMBMRAKRIE MAFE

MREEPHANGAIBRRRATER
% JR R B4 AN R B 3 A T R [ 4 i
BRAVESAREMEZEKE D RN
TETARERRE -DBA/RAYF
Eff ARG EREENEDZRER
Eﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁi BLAE B AH B )
EMBRATGERARNEER  BEREH
ﬁ@z%Ti%iﬁ'\ﬁﬁﬁ 5K

NHERBEAMUA -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR e B 15 R BT aE ()
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the FVPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018) (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at FVOCI and financial assets at amortised cost
are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs
except for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 May 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 May 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 May 2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 May 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 May 2018) (Continued)

Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 60 days, observable changes in local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank loans
and amount due to ultimate holding company) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading or (iii) it
is designated as at FVPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if :

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination
may be designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition if :

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKFRS 9/HKAS39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVPL.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at FVPL, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial liabilities that
contain embedded derivatives, such as convertible loan notes, the
changes in fair value of the embedded derivatives are excluded in
determining the amount to be presented in other comprehensive
income. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to accumulated losses upon derecognition of the
financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified
as at FVOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVOCI upon
application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated
losses.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Principal versus agent considerations for trading of
fertilisers and other products

Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or as an
agent, for financial reporting purposes, in the sales of goods
requires exercise of judgement and consideration of all relevant
facts and circumstances. In the evaluation of whether the Group is
acting as a principal or an agent, the Group noted that it does not
obtain control of the fertilisers and other products from the suppliers
before passing on to customers. The Group also considers,
individually and in combination, whether the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the fertilisers and
other products, is subject to inventory risk and has discretion in
establishing prices for the goods. Significant judgement is required
when inventory risk is not significant. Having considered the
relevant facts and circumstances, management considers that the
Group does not obtain control in respect of the trading activities
involving the fertilisers and other products. Accordingly, the Group
considers that for financial reporting purposes, it is acting as an
agent for sale and trading of fertilisers and other products and the
corresponding revenue is presented on a net basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values and impairment of
property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The Group tests annually whether its
property, plant and equipment have suffered any impairment in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. The assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset or a cash-generating unit is determined based on value in use
calculations which require the use of assumptions and estimates.
As at 30 April 2019, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment was HK$23,536,000 (net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$4,988,000) (2018: HK$6,197,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$5,197,000)).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly in response to change in market trends,
customer tastes and business environment. The Group will
reassess the estimations by the end of the reporting period. As at
30 April 2019, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$35,283,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$17,868,000) (2018: HK$51,958,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$23,836,000)).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for onerous operating leases

Onerous operating leases are operating leases in which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the operating
leases exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least
net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost
of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure
to fulfil it. Management performs assessment on retail outlets with
non-cancellable clause in the respective agreements for any
provision for onerous operating leases at the end of each reporting
period. As at 30 April 2019, the carrying amount of provision for
onerous operating leases was HK$4,561,000 (2018:
HK$2,115,000).
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5. REVENUE 5. W=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, all of which were recognised NEBERAN ZzZRKFZ(FAEKEEAR
from contracts with customers, for the year is as follows: FEXBR) DM T :
Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BE-Z-hE BHE-_Z—)/\HF
A=+H mA=+H
IEFE WFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FE T
Revenue from contracts with customers Y=Y =N oF:-0) &
Sales of merchandise EmiEE 178,321 307,015
Service income PR 7 W A 942 2,364
Commission income A&l A 23,086 6,122
202,349 315,501

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of merchandise

The performance obligation is recognised at a point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the customer, being at the
point the customer purchases the goods at the store or on delivery
of the merchandise for wholesale segment. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately and within 90 days at the point
the customer purchases the products under the retail and
wholesale segment respectively.

Service income

The Group provides services on repairing watches to customers.
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
service is completed and advance payments are normally required
before rendering the services. The Group’s enforceable right to the
payment is subject to the completion of the whole services. The
services are for periods less than one year.

EEQ }Emn,JE’JL'&
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REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Commission income

The performance obligation is completed at a point in time when
the services on arranging trading services are completed. Payment
is generally in advance from the customers before the agency
services are provided.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the wholesale and retail of
watches in Hong Kong since the date of incorporation of the
Company. During the year ended 30 April 2018, the Group started
engaging in agency activities in relation to sales and trading of high-
end biological fertilisers, fertilisers raw materials and public
consumption products (collectively referred to as “Trading of
fertilisers and other products”).

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, who are
the chief operating decision makers (“CODM?”) of the Group, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
are focused on three main operations of the Group identified in
accordance with the business nature and the size of the operations.

Specifically, the reportable and operating segments of the Group
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

o Retail business of watches (“Retail”) — retail of multi brands
of watches in Hong Kong

o Wholesalers business of watches (“Wholesale”) — wholesale
of multi brands of watches in Hong Kong

o Trading of fertilisers and other products (“Trading”) —
provision of agency services in relation to trading of fertilisers
and other products

There are no significant sales or other transactions among the
segments, except as disclosed below.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER @
Segment revenue and results DEME R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by 7N & EH A R E Eﬁ W R Al 2 ¥R
operating and reportable segment for the two years: DHE D ZWEREEDTAT ¢
For the year ended 30 April 2019 BE-Z-—NZWFHNA=+THLFE
Retail Wholesale Trading Elimination Total
Z2E€ #t 2% B3 88 BEr

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FER FER FERT FER

Revenue W &5
External sales SHNER 5 & 175,303 ) 178,321
External service AN B AR 7 YA
income 942
External commission  “p 2B {H & Y A
income : = 23,086
Inter-segment sales k- k= , (1,266) -
176,242 4,287 23,086 (1,266) 202,349
Segment (loss)/profit 23 B (E548) 34 Kl (16,231) (854) 7,467 (9,618)
Finance costs Bl & K AN (128)
Unallocated Group KoL EERZ
expenses (12,887)

Loss before tax % 1 B &5 18 (22,633)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PIER =
Segment revenue and results (Continued) TEWERESE @
For the year ended 30 April 2018 B _Z—N\FWOA=FTHILFE
Retail Wholesale Trading  Elimination Total
=5 #h 2% =0 4 35 BET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TAET TET TRET TAET

Revenue Y 2=
External sales SNER 5 & 304,162 2,853 — — 307,015
External service SN EB AR 75 M A
income 2,361 3 — — 2,364
External commission SNER AR & WA
income — — 6,122 — 6,122
Inter-segment sales D ERFESH & = 2,704 = (2,704) =
306,523 5,560 6,122 (2,704) 315,501
Segment (loss)/profit D EB(FE8) /i Al (6,544) 660 3,436 — (2,448)
Finance costs A& B AR (672)
Unallocated Group RO EBERX
expenses (12,658)
Loss before tax B B¢ A S5 18 (15,678)
Sales between segments are carried out at terms mutually-agreed DEHMEIEEIES R H 287 HE
between the parties involved in the transactions. The revenue from BEZIERET MATESIERZ
external parties reported to the executive directors is measured in a SNERET ) F s im Bl S B R EH M
manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of profit PEHWNBZR " Z2ARTE
or loss and other comprehensive income.
No segment assets and liabilities information is provided as no such AR ETHRAEE T ERL HE
information is regularly provided to the CODM of the Group for the EREHES X EERBEEAR - UEE
purpose of making decision for resources allocation and HEBRDAE RRRTE RS TR
performance assessment. HEMBELR -

I'“‘ Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R RS R R MR (48)
Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 #HZE-—Z— NWFMWA=+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7 IBEF @)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEMFERELE @
Geographical information ih I8 &
During the year, the Group’s operation is mainly located in the PRC FAN AEBEZ2EBETEMRFE K
and Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue by geographical location of EB - AERRETPWENME (EN
customers, based on location of deliver of the watches or services BRRBEH T E) &l D 2 st
is detailed below: RN
Year ended Year ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BZE HZE
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
B=+H mA=+H
+FEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
PRC F 23,086 6,122
Hong Kong BB 179,263 309,379
Total HEt 202,349 315,501
The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers in the PRC NREB ZHWBZFERBFTEHEALEST B
and Hong Kong. 99.5% (2018: 97.8%) and 0.5% (2018: 2.2%) of LEF o AREEINLSN(ZF —\F:
the non-current assets of the Group are located in Hong Kong and 97.8%) K05% (—F—)\FE :22%)H
the PRC, respectively. There are no single external customers who ERBEENDAMREERERTR - K
contributed more than 10% of total revenue of the Group for both BEBANLEE —ILEE T EEE
years. AEEBWRZAI10% ©

—E-NEER '| 43
- BEERARAT
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. D EER @
Segment revenue and results (Continued) ks A E Y EXAC )
Other disclosures Hib ik &=
For the year ended 30 April 2019 BE-_Z-—hAWFHA=+HLEE
Retail Wholesale Trading Total
Z2E it 2% = ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET F& T FET

Addition to non-current ANBIERBEE

assets
Depreciation of property, Y BB KRS
plant and equipment e
Loss on write-off of property, #5571 % « B E &
plant and equipment Bl SEi=|
Net gain on disposal of LEME  BE X
property, plant and =2 F s
equipment 2,099
Allowance for write-down of 2 (¥ [3]) /#& 2 #UA
inventories (reversed)/ FE 7 BE
recognised (6,475) (5,968)
Impairment loss on property, B R %  BE &
plant and equipment BEEREY SR
recognised
Provision for onerous ERREELE
operating leases HERE
recognised
Write-off of prepayment and  # 5 78 - 5% 78 K f& U
receivables KIA

@R, Annual Report 2019
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iR e B 15 R BT aE ()
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Other disclosures (Continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2018

Addition to non-current REFERBEE
assets

Depreciation of property, Y - BB MR
plant and equipment e

Net gain on disposal of HEME  BE R

property, plant and F i 2 =

equipment

Allowance for write-down of B #2 /(# [E) #i5

FEZBE

inventories recognised/
(reversed)

Impairment loss on property, 2R W% - HE &

plant and equipment REREREE
recognised

Provision for onerous ERREELE
operating leases HERE

recognised

Retail
=8
HK$ 000
FA T

2,742

2,667

51

1,263

85

321

2 EER @
2 E R FE @
H At 4% & ()
BE_ZT-/\FHA=1THILFE
Wholesale Trading Total
# 2 g5 #Et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET TET
— — 2,742
— 7 2,674
— — 51
(143) — 1,120
— — 85
— — 321
“E-NFER

BERERBERQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R RS R R MR (48)
Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Hittlrsm R EE

Year Ended Year Ended

30/4/2019 30/4/2018

BZE HE

—E-NF —E-NF

BA=+H WmA=+H

IEFE IEFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

THExT THT

Foreign exchange gain PE H, Ug 28 2
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HE ¥ % « HE KRB #E 2

equipment F U S 51
Loss on write-off of property, plant and WiEmE BMELRSZHEZ

equipment ki —

Interest income MEMKA =

Sundry income H A A —
Fair value gain on financial asset at FVPL 32 A F{E:t AEZ B4 @b

EEZAFERKZE =

53

@R, Annual Report 2019
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans

Interest on convertible note (Note)

Finance lease charges

Total

Note: On 31 July 2018, the Company issued 0.8% convertible notes to a

RITEFF B
A EEN B (A i)
MEHEER

mat

Ffat:

financial institution in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000 for a term of
one year. The convertible notes were fully early redeemed on 19 October
2018. Interest is charged at 0.8% per annum for the period from the issue
date to the early redemption date. A cancellation fee of HK$1,000,000 for
the early redemption was paid to the convertible noteholder and included
in “Other expense”. The entire convertible note contract was designated
as at FVPL upon initial recognition. No fair value gain or loss was
recognised during the year as the early redemption price was the same as
the issue price. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
31 May 2018, 20 June 2018, 4 July 2018, 11 July 2018, 26 July 2018, 31
July 2018 and 19 October 2018 for further details.

B &

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BZE BHE
—EB-hF —T-)N\F
B=+H MA=+H
LEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET

52 543

70 —

6 29

128 572

R-ZE—NFELA=+—8B ' AQFA
— R BB IEIT08% AT R EIK -
N % %8 /40,000,000 T B E—F -
ZEABRREZEER =T —\FE+A
TNABEEBPREBL -BFTHERSE
FEE B AR - A B IR F 7 = 0.8% U ER »
% 5 & [0 /Y 7F 44 2 1,000,000 7T B X
NTARBREBEFE AL ATE (L FH
Tl -MBURBREBREEHNB VT HER
BWETERBEAFEFAEBRZ FREF
fECIEE M EITERER - FE NI &
BRRATFERGEKEER - BEE— 5
B BLEARABHPAEA=-_ZT—\FH
A=+—H -ZF—N\FX~A=+H"
—E-N\FtAmOH - ZZE—N\FtA
+—B - ZE—-—N\FtA=Z+H =
E-NFELtA=Z+—BE=_ZE—N\F
+At+hBZzRE-

“E-NFER
BEBERZERERIA
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BRBIATEE
Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
Bz H=
—E—-hF —E—)N\F
mA=+H mA=+H
IEFE EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&E T TBT

Loss before tax has been arrived at after B BIEER IR GER)/ KB

(crediting)/charging: LATREIBEZEL -
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BENEREBITE

equipment 2,674
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BR D % B 2,033
Provision for onerous operating leases EREELEHERE

recognised 321
Provision for reinstatement costs B RIS E R AN

recognised 399
Write-off of prepayment and receivables  #ifi #5 78 {~+ 5% 18 % FE Uk 3k 18 =
Impairment loss on property, plant and BEERDE  BELXERE

equipment recognised &5 18 85
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) E=HM(HFE12) 8,655
Salaries, wages, bonus and other Fe ITE EAMEMET

employee benefits of other staff 2 EffE BEF 26,819
Retirement benefit scheme contribution of  H 4 & T 7 iR K 18 Fl 5 24 7%

other staff 1,063

Total staff costs =B R 35,410 36,5637

Allowance for write-down of inventories 2 (BE)/ R EE B E

(reversed)/recognised (5,968) 1,120
Cost of inventories recognised as HRERZ 2 FERKAKN
expenses 118,712 210,289

@R, Annual Report 2019
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. RSB X
Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BZE BHE
—E-hEF AN
B=+H MA=+H
LtEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TAT
Current taxation B HA 7 18

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNISH 372
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B EATE R 846
1,218

(Over)/under provision for prior years BAFE (B

BE) BETR

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFFH (331) 2,287
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R 1 ZE PSR (83) -
@14) 2,287
Deferred taxation (note 16) RIERLIE (M 7F 16) 1,782 1,065
4,260 4,570
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The RZE—N\NF=ZA=-_+—HH FHB
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which FEBEA(CCE—tFHBEUBE]) (&
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was TEVIEMERYEFHEZR]) 2| A
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the FERMES - ZIEOAERR T —
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first NE=ZAZTNBEEKRBEE I
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at REAHE - BEFSHMRES &
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The EREBBEEE2HEE B LaMiB%E
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax B25%MI L EXHM - MBB2AEB T
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. 79 F 5 12 16.5% 1) T R B i o 15

FEBRRAANGHMAFNEERR
B S I R A AR AR A — B0 TR R 16.5%
B o

—E-NEER '| AQ
- BEERARAT
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FTEFH B X @)
The Directors considered the amount involved upon implementation EE25E BIEMNESEMAE S ®TSE
of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as insignificant to the eSS BEHRR2EER
consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is WM EABANEHRAMEEFEE 2 et E
calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both R IR16.5% K Tl R+ & o
years.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BEPRPEMEHREILCERSRK
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of FENDRECEMEBRETHIEH - ME
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. FEZHBENB AR ZEHEE25% o
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax AREE7HMBESHEGAEREE
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 2w U S R 2 BR AT ES 18 H 8 a0
comprehensive income as follows: TS @
Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BZE HE
—E-hF —ZET—N\#F
MA=+H MA=+H
LEE IEFEE
HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FATT

Loss before tax B B A 1B (22,633) (15,678)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of WA TS E16.5% T E 2

16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (note) ME(ZZ—N\F :16.5%)
(Ki7E) (3,734) (2,587)
Tax effects of: NTEREZHEZE
Expenses not deductible for tax DGR
purposes 2,716
Income not taxable for tax purposes EERT WA =
Tax losses not recognised RERTIBEGE 1,903
(Over)/under provision for prior years BEFE(BERE) s
Py 2,087
Different tax rate of subsidiaries M8 ARz TR E 251
Reversal of opening deferred tax assets  HA #]4E 1 73 18 & 2 # [0 -
Others HAb —
Income tax expense FIEBiRAX 4,670
Note: The domestic tax rate, which is the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate, in the Hiat: R FiRIEAREBB AL D E KL E
jurisdiction where the operation of the Group substantially based is used. FETh AR 2B R - IEBFEHH

@R, Annual Report 2019
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB7,973,000
(2018: Nil) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the years ended 30 April 2019 and 2018, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting year.

10.

11.

Fr 8 % B X )

BEFBECEMRSHE BN
F—R—BE HPENBQRMR
B /9 % A BT = R &9 R B 7B = U 3B 4
Fio b kb BB B A B REH s FIE
HHEREENARKT?79730007T
ZE-)N\F:E)REAVERESP
STIREEHREREEG RARASES
BE DB B D TR ZRE AR B
EEREBRALRRRAAETS
B[ o

=)

BE_Z—NWFE_FT-—NFEOA=
T HEIEFE WERARA R T ®ERR
REMSERIKGERMBRE - 8BRS
FRPEEZRNERBRE ©
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

1R.ESERFETHRAEHME

107 5w

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance,

is as follows:

Name of director

HK$'000

Executive Directors:
Meng Guangyin (note a)
Liu Guoqing (note b)
Meng Bo (note c)

Liu Jiagiang (note d)
Liao Pin Tsung (note ¢)
Lam Man Wah (note )
Chan Ka Yee, Elsa (note g)
Tsang Hok Man (note g)
He Guangrui (note h)
Yang Haoju (note )

Yan Yongjian (note i)
Huang Lei (note )

Independent non-executive
Directors:

Chan, Yee Ping Michae!
(note )

Tian Zhiyuan (note k)

Hu Jinrui (note /)

Lee Chun Keung (note m)

Wang Luping (note n)

Gao Jizhong (note o)

Fung Tat Man (note p)

Chong Man Leung (note p)

Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie (note p)

Total

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

E3nz

TR

HITEF
HER (Hita)
2B (fritb)
EN D)
2 (fiza)
Bmfr (fiite)
M (
Rz

Bt (i
Bt (Hati)
Fok R (Rati)
UG

BUFHTEE:

BREAF (Hfat))

RXEM2
ERE (WD)

@t

Company and the Group.

Annual Report 2019

Fees

ne
2019 2018
ZE-hE CFNE

219

297

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

Salaries
#e
2019 2018
“E-hE ZE-N\%

6,073

2,840
148
89

il
1,965
1,009

8,151

-

Discretionary
bonus

Employer’s contribution
to pension scheme
EXRHKE
BE (173

2019
—E-NF

RiEEA
2019 2018
ZB-NF ZB-)\F

2018

O 0 o — A~ B~ ~ N

EXFRBITE

PN
E o

WRIBE R AR KR RRGD I E
ZFRAEETRETEZTHAEM

% 10

Total
@t

2019
“e-nfF ZF-NF

8,655

EZMENRERAN
RARAEEEHEHEEE RS 2 B
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12.
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 30 April 2019 and 2018.

Notes:

(@) Mr. Meng Guangyin was appointed as the executive director on 7
September 2017 and chairman of the board of the Company on 28
September 2017. He was re-designated as a chairman of the board and
the chief executive officer and an executive director of the Company on 1
April 2018.

(b) Mr. Liu Guoging was appointed as the executive director on 7 September
2017 and appointed as the co-chief executive officer of the Company on
18 October 2017. He was re-designated as an executive director and the
chief financial officer of the Company on 1 April 2018.

() Mr. Meng Bo was appointed as the executive director on 7 September
2017 and passed away on 28 November 2018.

(d) Mr. Liu Jiagiang was appointed as the executive director on 7 September
2017.
(e) Mr. Liao Pin Tsung was appointed as the executive director and chief

operating officer on 18 October 2017 and vice-chairman on 18 October
2017. He was resigned from the executive director and chief operating
officer and the vice-chairman on 18 October 2018.

() Mr. Lam Man Wah was resigned from the executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company on 28 September 2017.

(9) Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa and Mr. Tsang Hok Man were resigned from the
executive director of the Company on 28 September 2017.

(h) Mr. He Guangrui was appointed as the executive director on 7 September
2017 and appointed as chief executive officer on 28 September 2017. He
was redesignated as co-chief executive officer on 18 October 2017 and
was resigned from the executive director and co-chief executive officer of
the Company on 1 April 2018.

ESERFTETHRAEN=

(&)

EXFRRBLEATEST ZME IR
FHEARBEZTZME -

I E-F-AER-T-N\EMA=
TALFE BREFRTRARRE
5 1 7 2 B 3R S ) B K 3 AL 1 BN

2N
i e

it i

@ AEREER-_T—+tFLALBEE
ZERARAANTEERR_FT—t
FARA-ZTNBEZERARAES
EXF -RR_T-N\FHOA-HEH
EAERRAEEGEIFERITRAETR
HITES-

b)) 2B2IEBELER-_"Z—tFhLALBEE
ZERBRRRATEETEN - —+t
F+ATNBEZEAEAREHET
REH - BFR_E—N\EMNA—B%ER
EERRRRITESRERBHYBE -

© BAREERZZTE—tFLALtBAEZE
ERATES YR=_F—NF+—A
i VANCR -3

@ BIMBREER-_ZE-—LtFAALAE
ZIERATES -

© E;mExER_ZT-—tF+A+AR
BZERRTEEREFELEBELRE
EIF-BRAR-_ZF-NF+A+/\BEHE
HITEEREFEERRAIER -

(U] MXEEER_T—EFALA-_+N
BEFEARRARNTESE RITHRAH -

@ MBREEXLIREEXELER_FT—+
FNAZTN\BBEARANTES -

h BAHEESINR-_ZT—EtFAAL
FEZERRTEERR _T—tF
NAZ+NBEZRERITREE - B
— Tt F AT N NBERETRHE
TR TR _T—-N\FHA—HE
EARBNTES LB FITHRAER -
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

104 &8

Notes: (Continued)

(

Appointed as the executive director on 7 September 2017 and resigned
from the executive director of the Company on 28 September 2017.

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael was appointed as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 20 September 2017 and resigned
from the independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
December 2018.

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan was appointed as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 20 September 2017.

Mr. Hu Jinrui was appointed as the independent non-executive director of
the Company on 20 September 2017 and resigned from the independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 August 2018.

Mr. Lee Chun Keung was appointed as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 14 December 2018.

Mr. Wang Luping was appointed as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 27 December 2018.

Mr. Gao Jizhong was appointed as the independent non-executive
director of the Company on 22 August 2018 and was resigned from the
independent non-executive director of the Company on 25 October 2018.

Mr. Chong Man Leung, Mr. Fung Tat Man and Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie were
resigned from the non-executive director of the Company on 28
September 2017.

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

g

AvaT Zeiz
=

P&
PCe

H

5

=
N e

12.EERFETHRAEM S

(&)

Hif et -

0

(%)

RZE—+tFNALBEZERHT
ESUR-_ZTE—tFAA=-TN\B#
ERRARMITES -

BREFELTER_ZT—ttFNLA=F+H
BEZEEAARBIBYLIERTEZTIR
- )\FF+ZAZTEHETAEAR
RIBM IERITES -

BEEEER _ZE—tFNhA_-_+H
BRXERARRABIIFEATES -

HedsER—_T—tFNAA=-TA
EZERARABIUIFATERLRN
“ZE-NFNA-—HBBEARABIL
FEMITES -

FERBRAEENR-_T-N\F+-_A+M
FEZRE/SARBBILIEHNTES -

FREEER_ZE-—NEFE+_A=+
tEHEZTARRRBIIERNTES -

BERAEER_ZE—NENA=1+=
HEZTAARRBIUERITESL
R-E—NFE+A-_+HABIAA
RIBMN IERITES -

HEXmiE BEXLTEREBRELLE
RZE—+EFAA-TNAABRELRR
AERITES -




| AN m N T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R RS R R MR (48)
Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. T2 BRaSFMES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2018: four directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2018: one) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

¥ o JEAL - AfRBE N
B H a5
R AR AR F PR A
— BHERE DS

Salaries, bonus, other allowances and
benefits in kind

Retirement benefit costs
— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands:

Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

Z - 1,000,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company or the chief executive of the Group or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018: nil).

1,000,001 7T — 1,500,0005% 7T,
1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000 7T

FR - AEENAERSHHMES D
EEMEBEF(ZTE-—N\F HORE
2 BREFMZFBEN XM
12 HB=R(ZF—-N\F: —R)K
HEENMHFARATIBTHRAENK
SHMES ZFMFBLT

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BZE HE
—E—-hEF AN
B=1+H mA=+H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
3,613 935

54 19

WIEARRESMHFHFIME T 55 E
ZAMRSHHER AR :

Number
A

Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
HZE
—ZE—N\F
mA=+H
IEFE

AEBFRALBRAARAEFTHAE
EXrZETBRAESREZHRSHFMAL
XM E ERMBEAREEKINBEAR
SERMNESIER/BERABAE(CT
—\F ) o
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:
7
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A\ 1AW TN % ¢

i
5,

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREBE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable RATEEAEGERER LB EE

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: BIIREBELNTHESE
Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BZE H=
—E-NF —E-N\F
A=+H mA=+H
IEFE LEFE

Loss for the year attributable to owners of KA 7] #E B A JE(h F[E & 18
the Company (HK$’000) (F&) (26,893) (20,248)

Weighted average number of ordinary BT MR ME T

shares in issue (note) (#t&t) 800,000,000 800,000,000
Basic and diluted loss per share % B AR K 8 5E 55 18
(HK cents per share) (FREEL) (3.36) (2.53)
Note: The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 April it - BE-_ZT—-—NEFONA=1+BILFEZ
2019 does not assume the conversion of the Company’s convertible BESEENSEIBREARTR
notes which were issued and redeemed during the year since their FEFRNEBRTLBLRAAREEEN K
assumed conversion as at the date of issuance would result in decrease i AESEEENETHEREBER
in loss per share. No diluted loss per share is presented for the year FREBRL BARZEENES T
ended 30 April 2018 as there was no potential ordinary shares in issue for BELAEKR wEE-_Z—/\FOA=
that year. THIEFEYEZS|SREEES -

@R, Annual Report 2019
(2™ Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R RS R R MR (48)
Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % BERSEHE

Motor
Leasehold Furniture Office vehicles
improvements and fixtures equipment and yacht Total
HEYWELE FEAREE BLAERE REREE #mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FAET FAET FHBT FET
COST R A
At 1 May 2017 RZZE—tF
AHA—H 18,845 3,559 955 8,433 31,792
Additions NE 1,637 19 73 1,113 2,742
Disposals & (1,234) — - (728) (1,962)
At 30 April 2018 R=_ZT—N\F
mA=+H 19,148 3,578 1,028 8,818 32,572
Additions AE 9,100 — 31 18,160 27,291
Acquired on acquisition of 1 B — & Ff & A &)

a subsidiary (note 32) F AT EE A (B 5£32) = = = 1,988 1,988
Disposals & — (2,911) (364) (7,855) (11,130)
Write-off Hh 58 (10,993) — — — (10,993)
Exchange realignment SN FE ) B — — — (11) (11)
At 30 April 2019 R-_ZTE—NEF

mA=+H 17,255 667 695 21,100 39,717
DEPRECIATION AND B RIRE

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 May 2017 R-ZZT—tF

AA—H 17,502 3,498 851 3,683 25,534
Provided for the year FRNEE 878 34 69 1,693 2,674
Impairment loss BRI EEE

recognised 85 — — — 85
Eliminated on disposals A HH & B % 44 (1,190) = = (728) (1,918)
At 30 April 2018 RZZE—)N\F

MmA=+H 17,275 3,532 920 4,648 26,375
Provided for the year F B 2,085 13 40 2,384 4,522
Impairment loss ERERBEEE

recognised 4,404 — — — 4,404
Eliminated on disposals A B 8 — (2,895) (836) (5,278) (8,509)
Eliminated on write-off B B B S 8 (10,611) = = = (10,611)
At 30 April 2019 R—ZZE—NF

WmA=+H 13,153 650 624 1,754 16,181
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 30 April 2019 R-ZZT—NF
WmA=+H 4,102 17 71 19,346 23,536
At 30 April 2018 RZE—N\F
WMA=+H 1,873 46 108 4,170 6,197
—E-NEFFR

BERERBERQA



o=

a! AW TNT?

‘\‘

Whra®

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR e B 15 R BT aE ()

g

ATLT Ceis

RS
=
=

-
=
5,
e

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

108 &

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 30 April 2019, the directors of the Company have
conducted a review of the Group’s leasehold improvements which are
used in the Group’s retail outlets as certain retail outlets of the Group
recorded operating losses which indicate the leasehold improvements in
these retail outlets might have been impaired. The management estimated
the recoverable amounts of the relevant leasehold improvements and
considered that the recoverable amount of certain of these assets was
insignificant. Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$4,404,000 (2018:
HK$85,000) was recognised in “seling and distribution costs”. The
estimates of recoverable amounts were based on value in use of the
cash-generating units to which these assets belong. The discount rate in
measuring the amount of value in use was 10% (2018:10%).

As at 30 April 2018, the net book value of motor vehicles and yacht of
HK$4,170,000 included an amount of HK$1,182,000 in respect of assets
held under finance leases.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated,
taking into account their residual values, on a straight-line basis as
follows:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht

Lease terms of 2 to 5 years
Shorter of lease term or 5 years

3 years
5 years

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

15. 1% - B E R R B wm)

Hif et -

Lt

REBEE-_Z—NFOA=1THIEFE
AR EEHARAEEZTEEHD
THEMEREBENRE BALEE
NETZEEHBRENELBERETR
ZETEEFNBAEMERBHER
BE-EEEGAAHBREEMERZEN
AREREBEERIETRESEEN
AU EIRIBBE AEKX - Bt - BEESE
4,404,000 7T (= F — /\ & : 85,0007
T)ERIEE RS HERA]FHER - 7]
KWESERNHANERZEEENB
ReELEEMNEREBEE FT2ERE
BELBEHMEIE R AE10% (2T — N\ F:
10%) °

RZZBE-—NFHA=+H AERHFEE

2 % BR T {E 4,170,000 7T & 15 1R & &l
BRERHA 2 EE,182,000% T °

ME BMERREEEB IR R

REREEER RESREFEWOT

HE
RE

x&KE HEHR2ESF
MEE HAEHNSFE (AR
REAE)
=RE  3F
RipEfE 54




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ire M ERR M A

For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

16. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

At 1 May 2017 RZE—+tFHA—H
Charged to profit or loss KRR
At 30 April and 1 May 2018 RZE-NFHA=+H
kAEA—H
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss REZ (R, /G ABR
Current year REE
Reversal of opening deferred tax EEENBRNELTHIE
assets resulting from BERE
reassessment
At 30 April 2019 R-ZZE-NFOA=+H

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$82,912,000 (2018: HK$44,410,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$13,528,000 (2018: Nil) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unused tax losses do not have an expiry date.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$9,104,000 (2018: HK$11,663,000), of
which HK$859,000 (2018: HK$11,663,000) has been recognised
as deferred tax asset. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to the remaining deductible temporary differences as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

(%)

16. I&

—EF-AFMAStALEE

#IE Bt 18

TRHFINAEERAFRER LFEHE
ReEBEERBAELE(BFE) RE

ek
=

Decelerated/

(accelerated)
Provision tax depreciation Tax losses Total
W& (&)
B BEHE HESBRE #ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TET THET TER
1,091 1,642 256 2,989
(742) 67) (256) (1,065)
349 1,575 — 1,924
(349) (2,305) 2,232 (422)
- (1,360) = (1,360)
(349) (3,665) 2,232 (1,782)
= (2,090 2,232 142
R|EHR RERATARERRE

mﬂZ%@%ﬁE%ﬁ%ﬁ&mzmo
77T (= Z — )\ 4F : 44,410,000 7T ) °
5% = 18 #913,528,00058 7T (= & —
NE: E)VERAELEHRBEEE ZNE
SETE R B 1805 R B L 6R A
HEEBRECHBEE - APHAZ
REEEITEDEE -

R IR EHIR - AN B /A 08 R
= 58 59,104,0008 t( =& — J\ F :
11,663,000/ 7T) + E F1859,000%8 7T (=
T — \ 4 : 11,663,000 7t ) R B iE
ERIEEE - ARAIREN R B ER
B LA 3K 65 AT 0 R B AE = RE 0 I &
WREBR TNAI BT REEEMEBD
RIEFIRE FE o
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial asset mandatorily measured at FVPL:
Life insurance policy

ABRE

As at 30 April 2019, the Group has one life insurance policy with
insurance company to insure a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Under the policy, the group entity is the beneficiary and
policy holder and the total insured sum is US$1,274,438 (equivalent
to approximately HK$9,941,000). The Group is required to pay a
single premium of US$514,800 (equivalent to HK$4,000,000) at
inception. The Group can, at any time, withdraw cash based on the
account value of the policy (“Account Value”) at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid plus
accumulated guaranteed interest earned and minus any charges
made in accordance with the terms and conditions of the policy. If
withdrawal is made between the 1st to 15th policy years, there is a
specified amount of surrender charge deducted from the Account
Value. The insurance company will pay the Group variable return
per annum afterwards (with minimum guaranteed interest rate of
2.25% per annum) during the effective period of the policies.

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 on 1 May 2018, the
Group reclassified the life insurance policy previously grouped
under “Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments” to
financial asset at FVPL.

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

17.

BHR AP EFABRSHTENSREE

§$E§+A$§§E’9$@

Y S
t

30/4/2019
—E-NE
mA=+H

HK$°000
TET

3,856

RZBE—NAFWNA=1+H AEED
HBEREB AR —MHAZSRE ALK
AR— BRIz —RERRR-
BEZRE SEERAZ=ARR
BEEAN RBRBEEH1,274,438% T
(18 & M #9,941,000/8 L) - AEE R
A1 MR EBERZB S N — N BIR 514,800
= 7t (18 % 724,000,000 7T) ° AN & B
AR BN RERFEE(RR
BEDENRERES MEFEER
ENREABMBAHENNREF S
BNBREER KRG TR ER S
AET - MRFEIR15EREEMNIE
BB ERFEETNRIEECEE
MRIRER - ZRBR QA ZEBGRR
BERBANAARAEE LT HAEFED
H(FERFBMNELREAR225%) °

RZE-\FAA-—BERERAETE
MBHRELEINEIRER  AEE KL
AR B[R E 5KIA - H it B W RIA
RENRBEISENASREEH D
BERRAVPEAABRGSNEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

CLUB MEMBERSHIP

Cost 5N

Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 32) (Kr&#32)

Club membership is stated at cost less any identified impairment

loss. For the purpose of impairment testing on club membership,

the recoverable amount has been determined based on fair value

less costs to sell which represents the second-hand market price

less cost of disposal.

INVENTORIES

Merchandise for resale 8 & 7 W

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$112,744,000 (2018: HK$211,409,000),
which included reversal of allowance for write-down of inventories
recognised of HK$5,968,000 (2018: allowance for write-down of
inventories recognised of HK$1,120,000) for the year ended 30
April 2019.

19.

(GRS
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—g-hE —F-NF
A=+H MA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT THT

U fis — el BT B8 2 B B BT BB A

4,000 =

B2 ER & REIR A AR AE ] 2 B Bl RUE
BEIK SHEKLBE B ETRE
AR ATRE B EAFERES
RA(FE—FHmSERBMLERAN)E

E o

ﬁ =
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—B-nFE —T)N\F
mMA=+H MA=+E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T

HE-_ZT—NFUNA=ZF+RHILFE"
HREAZBFTAHEXN T ZFEK
R B112,744,0008 T (=T — J\ F :
211,409,000/ 7T ) ' & F B iF B #
AT G MR & # 05,968,000 JT
(ZE—NF: EERTEMREE
1,120,000/ L) °
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

Trade receivables
— third parties
— arelated company (note 37)

Rental and utilities deposits
Other receivables

— third parties

— arelated company (note 37)
Bills receivables (note (a))
Prepayments (note (b))

Total trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments

Less: non-current portion — rental deposits

Notes:

@

As at 30 April 2019, bills receivables amounting to HK$42,060,000 (2018:

FEW & 5 5K IR
—%=7

— — MR R (F:37)

HeEkrRAEERS

H A & W KA

—%=7

— — MR R R (M a£37)
FEW AR (ff i (a)

B FRIE (B (b))

FEU & 5 50 IR L At B YR IR

RN RIBERER

B ERNEE S - HERE

20. JiELlﬂlfé’i%?‘fﬁ’\tIE - H fth FE R
FIERFERIE

30/4/2019
ZE-hEF
mA=+AH

HK$’000
TERT

30/4/2018
—ZE-N\F
MA=+H

HK$’000
T
(restated)

(=75)

4,420
6

4,426
18,355

150

39,980
75,824

145,128

138,735

(1,381)

137,354

izt

@

HK$37,734,000) were endorsed to suppliers as prepayments for
merchandises. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards because the bills were endorsed on a full recourse basis, the
Group continued to recognise these endorsed bills under bills receivables
and recognise corresponding obligations arising from endorsement of bills
included in other payables set out in note 23. These arrangements relate
to the agency services activities undertaken by the Group in the Trading

operating segment.

(b)

During the year ended 30 April 2019, there was write-off of prepayment of

®)

HK$941,000 (2018: Nil) which were long outstanding despite the Group
having taken positive actions seeking to recover them.

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

R-F—AEWA=+8 " 42,060,000
B (=ZZF — /\ & : 37,734,000/ 7T) Z
BRZEERETHES (FAERZ
TENRE - AR ERIEEEABEREEY
E AEETAEESEARERKXEH -
AEBRBERERZSECEEZRRE
W - WHERF AM 2385 2 H b
ERRESEZESIRZEEET - Z
ELHERAEERR HES H I A
ZRIEBREEENGRE -

REBEE=ZT—NAFEA=1THILFE"
& B AR B R R S i S sk i B B
NHFIE BNEEMERAREENTE
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 20.
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

The trade receivables mainly comprise receivables from credit card
companies for retail sales and wholesale customers. There was no
specific credit terms granted to those credit card companies. The
receivables due from credit card companies were usually settled
within 7 days. The Group’s credit terms granted to wholesale
customers, including a related party customer, generally ranged
from 30 to 90 days from the invoice date.

Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currencies of the relevant Group entities
are set out below:

US Dollars e

@W%%ﬂﬁ~ﬁ@@%
FIE K FE AT RE @

EWEZHREBEFTZERERAEEARA
R EERKRREREERRE 2RI
HE - BENZEEARAFAKTEE
AEEEERH - BRERRARZK
H—RR7TEBRLES AEEE T
ERE(BE—R2BEBIEF)ZEEH
—MNFHREZAHBES0E0H -

NEEEEER BB AINCZE
WIME 2B 5 K& E b & YR IAE 51 40
T

30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-NEF —E—-N\F
A=+H mA=+H

HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TAT
(restated)
(F&E5)

2,281 1,790

“E-NFER
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 20 EWEBE ZRIE HtEW
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS MIE K T KIE @)
(Continued)
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables presented BRETSZQH2Y 2 EIRE S IERR
based on the invoice dates. DI AT -
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
B=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Within 30 days 30H K 4,240
31 to 60 days 31 HZE60H 141
61 to 90 days 61 HZ90H 45
4’426
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a o 480 HA SRk (B 2 e W SRR B % (E] i HR
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no WEENCDE I EZBZTIEERP A
recent history of default. i -
As at 30 April 2019, none of the trade receivables was past due but RZZE-NFEA=TH  BiEEK
not impaired (30 April 2018: Nil). Bo5RBEBHERBE(ZZE N
FHA=+H:4&)-
The amounts outstanding on trade receivables that were written off RBEEZZTE-—NFONA=THILHF
during the year ended 30 April 2019 were HK$1,790,000 in B MENERE S HRENREER
aggregate. These amounts were written off after the Group had T & 5T 41,790,000 7t © £ 748 & B %
taken positive actions seeking to recover them with no results. MERTE S RKKE ZFRIEER

& ZERACHIE -

@: Annual Report 2019
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

21. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 1. HEZTREE
The following were the Group’s financial assets as at 30 April 2019 UNTAREBRR_-_TE—NLFR_ZT—
and 2018 that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing those bills NEMA=THZBEHELZEER
receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not EELSEZZZENZEE MEE T H
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these EEZEMEE - ARNAEB T EE
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the LRI IR 2 = AR N B R
bills receivables (see note 20) and corresponding other payables (see HEEMAEWEZE (R KE20) &H
note 23). These financial assets are carried at fair value through FEEMPENZE(RKMiE23) 2 25E0E
other comprehensive income in the Group’s consolidated HE ZEeREETIRAEER 24
statement of financial position. EUMBERABMEAEAFETAEAM
ZHE Wz AR o
As at 30 April 2019 R=F—-hFNA=+H
Bills
receivables

endorsed to
suppliers with
full recourse

R2HEERE

EOftEmE

ENERERE

HK$°000

FET

Carrying amount of bills receivables EWEE 2 BREE 42,060

Carrying amount of obligations arising from BEEERSIBcEAEREE

endorsement of bills (42,060)

Net position FEAR N -

As at 30 April 2018 RZE-NFEOA=+H

Bills receivables
endorsed to
suppliers with
full recourse

RE2EBRE

ERHERS

EMREKERE

HK$’000

FHET

Carrying amount of bills receivables EWREE 2 REE 37,734
Carrying amount of obligations arising from FEEEBSIBCECREE

endorsement of bills (87,734)

Net position FREARR —

—E-hEER '| 66
E—BEBRERERA T
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. HERESEEY
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from RITERBRIZ013% E0.35% 2 IR 1T %5
0.13% t0 0.35% (2018: 0.30% to 4.80%) per annum. FRNE(ZE—)\F :0.30% £ 4.80%)
i B e
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-hF —F-NF
B=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Bank balances R1T 45 R 54,391
Cash H 5 212

Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 22,483 54,603

@R, Annual Report 2019
(2™ Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited



| JANTY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR e B 15 R BT aE ()

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

23. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIESAND 23. HitE8EdE Rk H BFZ &
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER H i & {3 BB 1E
PAYABLES

30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
A=+H mA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(s E7)
Trade payables (note (a)) e E 55 IE (Kt @)
— third parties == 18,815
— related companies (note 37) — B R R (B aE37) 46
18,861
Rent payable ERES 1,269
Accrued employee benefit expenses EitEERFIRZ 2,739
Provision for reinstatement costs (note (b)) 1E1E A AR B 5 (HaF (b)) 1,796
Provision for onerous operating leases (note (c)) % & #& & M & # & (M3 () 2,115
Other accruals and payables HMER 28R R ENMNKIE
— endorsement of bills (note 21) —EBEEWt21) 37,734
— third parties —%£=5 4,484
— arelated company (note 37) — —HEs AR (KE37) —
Amount due to a director of a subsidiary (note (d)) e — B AR 2 —RBE=
SKIB (K £ () =
Contract liabilities aHaE —
Advance receipt 7B SR IE 67,797
139,876 136,795
Less: non-current portion B FEBNHEAEE (2,068) (793)
Current portion Bl EA 8 5 136,002

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from
purchasers to arrange for the fertilisers and other products to be
provided by the suppliers to the purchasers (“Trading of fertilisers”).
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the
decrease in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the provision of services on the Trading of fertilisers at
the end of the year.

EHNEABEERALTSEEEARMA
BEURENEMREMER(EHE
SBEHRBMHERER  —F—
NENENEBRIDEZHARNE
ABMEERE ZRREHENRBE LR P U
BB A HA 28 5RO A

“E-NFER
BEBERZERERIA

16/



g

o8]
()=
il
1]

0 1\ Ky ‘:"A ‘\ y .'7 i
My A
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R RS R R MR (48)
Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

:
H

N e~

(7)) Q\/Il’."m Ly @\ (\ )

i
5,

23. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND 23. H {th
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER H iy
PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: /}ﬁ?f .
(@) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based on @ REZEAMIE T EMNE S % IEE B
the invoice dates. AR o
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—2-hE —E-N\F
B=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30B A 18,720
31 to 60 days 31E60H A —
Over 60 days HHBiE60H 141
18,861
(b) Movements in the Group’s provision for reinstatement costs are as ®) NEB EEKRABRESHMT -
follows:
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—2-hE —E-N\F
B=+H MmA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of the year F17 1,776
Additional provision during the year FENEBINEE 399
Settlements/reversals during the year FRENMN D (3879
At end of the year FR 1,796

[, Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

(%)

T-AFMA=TAILEE

23. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND 23.
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() The provision for onerous operating leases represents the anticipated
unavoidable costs for fulfilling the onerous non-cancellable lease
agreements. The lease agreements were entered into ranging from 2 to 3
years, the last of which will fall due on 19 November 2021. The provision
amount would be reduced upon the payment of the remaining rental

charges.

Movements in the Group’s provision for onerous operating leases are as

follows:

At beginning of the year
Provision during the year

F 71

FARB

Release of provision upon payment of rental charges 3% {5 7 & 2 A 14 fR (5 # 5

At end of the year

FR

(d) Amount due to the director of a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

24. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANY

24.

Amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Kz« (&)

© SECERERAEAMRATEE
FURHAMEBAELE L TTREK
Ao BH T2 BEHEF BN F2ES
T BE-BAREGREN-FT=—F
+—AtABEHE - BES BN LM
ABESBBEAD -

AEBEZESR2MERFERZHNOT

30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—®-h%E e
A=+8 mA=+8
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T T
8,598
321
(6,804)
2,115
d EBEN—HENBARESREBRERER.

TEEERIZEREE -

BEEA/[?J. Xn\gj:g\gﬂn/-\ —.I/TAIE

ENZRERATDRBEBERER T
AARRRERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R RS R R MR (48)
Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

BANK LOANS 25. iR 1T B K
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
A=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FB T
Bank loans, repayable within one year and RZE—NFHNA=+H" A
containing a repayable on demand clause, —FREETHFIZENRKE
unsecured, with effective interest rate of 3.83% & &3k MK IR - BEREF =X
per annum as at 30 April 2018 #3.3% 2 HBRITE K 5,806

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and unsecured and approximated to their fair
values. The applicable interest rates of the respective bank loans
ranged from Hongkong InterBank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”) plus 2.15%
to 2.65% per annum as at 30 April 2018.

As at 30 April 2019, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
HK$24,020,000 (2018: HK$23,500,000) for overdrafts and loans.
Unused facilities as at the same date were HK$24,020,000 (2018:
HK$17,694,000). The banking facilities were granted to the
subsidiaries of the Company and were subject to an annual review
and guaranteed by unlimited guarantees from the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

AEERITERZE@MAENUS T E
MEEE WEEQAFERSE R
T-NFOA=+H BARTER
ZHEAMNERAEEBRTRAERE(SE
PBIRIT R EHFE LD INEF E2.15% =
2.65% 15 o

RZE-—NAFHEA=ZF+H XK
BMEREXRKRERZIETRE

48 %8 504,020,000 (= E — N
£ 123,500,000 70) ° R B 2 K 8) A
B & A24,020,000/8 L (= F — N\ F !
17,694,000 70) » IR{TBA & T T &
AAEIfBAR WAHAETFERHBR
AARRIRARRSETHBAQRRME
Z ERIERATER -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R RS R R MR (48)
Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 #HZE-—Z— NWFMWA=+HILFE

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. Gt EfHEE T

30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
A=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DM ER A% -
Current liabilities mEAR 485
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 342
It is the Group’s policy to lease as lessee two motor vehicles under BEREHEHEME TE I AE
finance leases. The average lease term is 3 years as at 30 April (EBEABA)ZHE - —E— \FEHXN
2018. Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases A=+H ¥HHEEHE=F-- HH
are fixed at respective contract dates ranging from 2.90% to 3.09% EREHETFEHEBE2FNEHGNE B
per annum as at 30 April 2018. EHBEHEE - N\FHEHA=T

A - F & F2.90%£8.09% % -

—E-hEER '| 7'|
= ERERAERAT
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 #HZE-—Z— NWFMWA=+HILFE
26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. MEHEE T
(Continued)

Finance lease liabilities mEHESE
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
B=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TH T F# T

Gross finance lease liabilites — minimum lease AR EBEH#ESE — REHEE

177 5

payments (NES
Within one year —F R 503
Within a period more than one year but not ZR—FENEAMF 2 B HE
more than two years 298
Within a period more than two years but not ~ Z A FEE T BB =4 2 Hifk
more than three years 50
851
Future finance charges on finance lease BMEHERBEARARMEER
liabilities (24)
Present value of finance lease liabilities BMEHNEBERE 827
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 W R12E AR EBEE 2
months (shown under current liabilities) SR(ERBARBET
5II7R) 485
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R12E A REBEE 2 258 342

Annual Report 2019
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL 27. 7
Number of
shares  Share capital
vy = & A<
'000 HK$’000
Fi Tt
Ordinary shares of par value HK$0.01 each BEE.01E Tz E B
Authorised EE
At 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2019 RZZE-NFOA=THE
—E-NFMNA=+H 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRABR
At 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2019 R-_Z-—N\FHA=+B K
—T-NAFMA=1+H 800,000 8,000
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 28. R k8 ® 5+ 2l
Defined contribution plans E MG E

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs or
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The qualifying employees in the PRC of the Group are members of
a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$1,754,000
(2018: HK$1,135,000) represent contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

AEBERBEEMAREREBERY
BREMELAEEAHE -FEZEEHE
FAEHzEeRKA BAKEZE
ENFEE - AEEEZARHEBET
¥ B 2 5% 3% & % 1,500 7T A & 8 4
o mEB MEHAERER -

AEERTEZEAEREEHZ2NT
HABERAELSRELBERERARSE
Z-AEEAREIFMREAZETE
Lo Bl i) AR AR & At B SR A B A AR A
PT® sH - At AR E REZRRE 5
SR EHEREEIHR -

EREaYTRERZBRESRE A
1,754,0007% 70 (= Z — J\ £ : 1,135,000
BIT) c HEAAREER A HEE R
ZEFTEI T 2K e

“E-NFER
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option schemes

Pursuant to the board resolution passed on 4 January 2018, the
Board resolved to grant 80,000,000 share options (the “Share
Option Plan”) in total to employees and business associates of the
Company (the “Grantees”, and each a “Grantee”), subject to
acceptance of the Grantees, to subscribe for a total of 80,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company.
The Share Option Plan is approved by the Shareholders by way of
poll at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 January 2018.

No share options were granted and outstanding as at 30 April 2019
and 2018.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 April 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have any material
capital commitments.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid and recognised R 2 B R AR X 2
REHEREEENRK

as an expense under operating leases during
the year

Contingent rent LAEE

Annual Report 2019
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

29.

30.

RN RRZ

UESEAE 2 BRESE

BRER-_ZE—N\NF—ANEBABZ
EEERER EETTRRAHEED
80,000,000 17 8 A% 4 ([ B8 A% #& 51 2 1)
FARAARIZEE REBRH ([ FEK
A FEREAZHNE ATRBEARAQ
Al & 7 A& ££80,000,000 §% & A% HE &
QOB T ZEBE BRER-_ZF—N
F—A-+RHBTZERENRS
EREEREF A EERERE -

R-_ZE—NER-_E—NEmMA=+
BB B HE B % 4k 77465 B AR A
B AR EE

R-B-NWFR-ZZF-NFHEHA=*
B ANEEHMEERAEANERARE-

3. REMEE
TEEEREBEA
Year Ended Year Ended
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
BZE BH=E
—E-NEF —E-N\F
MA=+1H MA=+H
LEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
(restated)
(&%)
47,029
81552




|

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HNANCMLSUWEMENTS(CONﬂNUED)
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & ZE - =

31. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group
for retail outlets and office premises. The majority of lease
agreements are non-cancellable with lease terms between 2 and 3
years. Some lease agreements are cancellable with a notice period
of 3 to 6 months.

The above lease commitments do not include commitments for
additional rentals payable, if any, when revenue of individual retail
outlet exceeds a pre-determined level as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The office premises in the PRC are rented from the PRC
government for free.

(%)

F_EFAF(FEEMF)

—NFEA=THLEE

1. BE€HEw

AEBERKAHEA @
PR HR R - A S BB IR R AT BB

LEHOTEHREN 2 xERERMNK
APENT

30/4/2019 30/4/2018

—E-hE — )\ &

mMA=+H MA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT FET

22,324

! 7,756

KEHENKEAEERZTEE L

NEMERMNZES - K0 HEW

ZITAHE BN F2E3F - &
DHEEBZEAIERLG TIZ6HEAZE
AT LABH -

rRAEAEYREESBRENSE
£ T 8 I 2% B 1 T SR K P B E A 0 BB
ShER TS (A EE FEEE
EELEEERENESSE -

FENBAEMELEBRTERNFE
==
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32. ACQUISITION OF ACLUB MEMBERSHIP 32.:Z:B Ui — BB A =&
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MESPSENHMEE
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A ) E=R
SUBSIDIARY
In April 2019, Treasure Ascent International Limited (“Treasure RZE—NAFOA BEaBBRAEREA
Ascent”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired A(EsH)(KAEINE2ENRBAF)
100% equity interest in Fulham Corporation Limited (“Fulham”) from BMEE(RERER —RES 2
Mr. Lam who is one of the Previous Controlling Shareholders and a EF)VWNELEERA AR LEE]D Z
director of Treasure Ascent. The principal activity of Fulham is 100% - FENETEXKEERE
holding a yacht club membership in Hong Kong. The assets BN iR ez FIINEEEE K
acquired and liabilities assumed did not constitute a business FrAHE 8 &I T KB B 5 E %
combination as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations and BISES KL HITRATENERS
therefore, the acquisition was accounted for as assets acquisition. W WEESEDEAEERE AL
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction were XHRKEEERMAEZERGEWN
as follows: ™
HK$’000
FBT
Intangible asset — club membership | EE — BT 5E 4,000
Motor vehicle =l 1,988
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSEEY 146
Other payable — amount due to HEMZIE - EN—RHHNBEARZ
a director of subsidiary —REENE (2,134)
Net assets of the subsidiary acquired BB B A RN EE T8 4,000
Consideration KB 4,000
Total consideration satisfied by cash consideration paid LAIR € (8 X {4 80 & 1% B 4,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEBEEANRS R F5E
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (4,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WENHE S RIAEEEY 146
(3,854)

@: Annual Report 2019
(M3 Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited



32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

re M RAR MR

For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —

ACQUISITION OF A CLUB MEMBERSHIP
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Pursuant to the agreement entered into between Treasure Ascent
and Mr. Lam in relation to the acquisition of equity interest in
Fulham (the “Agreement”), Treasure Ascent granted to Mr. Lam the
call option which is exercisable by Mr. Lam during the period of ten
years from the date of the Agreement. Under the call option, Mr.
Lam shall have the right to require Treasure Ascent to sell 100%
equity interest in Fulham to him at market value to be assessed by
an independent valuer jointly appointed by the parties.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to owners of the Company through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the bank loans disclosed in note 25, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated losses and other
reserves.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with the share
capital and bank loans. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the issue of new shares, new debts or the
redemption of existing debts.

(%)

—E-NAFONA=TRHIEFE

32.

33.
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RIBESEMELETINARKE L
ERENBZ(HE) BSRTH
AR BMEEBZGEBRPRETF
NITENRBERE - REIBHE
MELERERELEGUATEREL
ELE100%H B YHESTHRZ
TR B (A EMETRE

EXERERE

AEENEAEEEHAERAEE

EROERELE AREEE(LE
BRRRERBARNBEAR AT KR

AEH - AEE 2 ERRE A EFR
AEEF-

AEBZEAGEBEBRAE EBE
ERMELEBELRITER B Rk
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

34a. Categories of Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
(2018: Loans and receivables)
— Trade and other receivables
— Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at FVOCI
(2018: Loans and receivables)

Financial asset at FVPL

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— Bank loans
— Trade and other payables
— Amount due to ultimate holding
company
— Amount due to a director of
a subsidiary
Finance lease liabilities

@R, Annual Report 2019
(2™ Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited

4. £ I A

THMERE

30/4/2019

—E2-hEF
MA=+H
HK$’000
TERT

REHKAI R EMEE
(ZE-N\F: EFRRERFR)
— B 5 R E AR WA
—RERASEEY

BAFEFAEMEZEE R
CRMEE(CZE-N\F:EX
K MR IR)

BAFEFABRSNEREE

30/4/2019
—E-hE
mMBE=+H

HK$’000
THERT

BEEAAIEZCREE

—|RITER
— B ZREAMENKE

— BN &RER QB RIEA

—EN-—HMNBRARZ -—BESE
A
MEHERE

DY X ¥
o' A Y
A L y.’,:"ﬁ' doll Ll 41 YW

5,

Ma. e IT A ZEFA

Sp

ATAT Seis
=,

N e~

30/4/2018

—E—N\EF
WA=+H
HK$’000
FHT
(restated)
(FeE75)

4,576
54,603

39,980

30/4/2018
—ZT—)\F
mA=+H

HK$’000
FH&IT

5,806
65,087
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. €@ T A @)

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and M. EREBEEAEERK
Policies x
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and AEBEZFZeMTEBREES
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial assets REMEKZ HEekHESEE
at FVOCI, financial assets at FVPL, bank loans, trade and o BAFEFAEMEEWRE
other payables, amount due to ultimate holding company, MemEE  BAFEFTAER
amount due to a director of a subsidiary and finance lease HNeEmEE BRTER - BHK
liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in HMWENTIE  ENZKRERA
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial AIMFRIE BN —ERBARZ
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest —ZEERELAMEEEARE-
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to ZESRMTE VA BIRENRNERA
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management Mzt ZEcm T EZHERE
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure BIETS R R (S8 E R &=
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and B EERREASHE SR
effective manner. % o /8 R BE It 5 R B 2 BOSR

RTIX -EEEEEREEZS
JE\ B DA TR Ko B 3 K b B ERGE
ERFEE -

Currency risk B e

During the year ended 30 April 2019, the Group undertakes RBEE_ZT—-—NLFHA=+H
certain sales in United States dollars (“USD”), which is the IFFEE REBNUET(ET))
currency other than the functional currencies of the respective (EAEBEEEEEINEEE A
group entities. The functional currency of these group entities N BB ETE TIHE - 2%
is Renminbi and their trade and other receivables are SEEBNEEEASARER
denominated in USD. The Group manages its foreign HENB S RE b pEIL IR TS LA
currency risk by closely monitoring the movements of the ENE AEERATYER
foreign currency rates. The Directors conduct periodical SN FEE [ SR 5 E) & 3R E HNFE R B o
review of foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging EZHINERRETTE B I
significant foreign exchange exposure should the need arise. MM BREEZE Y PE KINEE
During the year ended 30 April 2018, the Group received BE_Z-\GFOA=1THIHF
commission income in USD, which is the currency other than B AEEEWEAETEESN
the functional currency of the respective group entity, HKS. WA ETEEBER TS
The Directors consider that the foreign currency risk of USD e EB TUINNEE - EER
against HK$ is insignificant. A =0 KR 7B TT RSN E B B I R

BN

—E-hEER '| 79
E—BEBRERERA T
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

180 &

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the respective reporting
dates are as follows:

Trade and other receivables

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2018: Nil) increase in the functional currency of the
relevant group entities, Renminbi, relative to respective
foreign currency, USD. The sensitivity analysis includes only
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2018: Nil) change in the foreign currency rates. If the
functional currency of the relevant group entities strengthen/
weaken 5% against respective foreign currency, the Group’s
post tax loss for the year would be increased/decreased by
approximately HK$86,000 (2018: Nil).

Annual Report 2019
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34. €@ I A @)
. ERBREEBEERK

B 5 NE MRS RA

& (#)

= 3E )
RERERAEBAINESHE
MEMEENBEEENT :
30/4/2019 30/4/2018
—E2-0F —E-NF
A=+H WMA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FisT
BREDN

B BURKE D AT Rl AN 5 [ 5 A
HEBEREEEARE
HEB 2B (EET) AE
(ZZE—NF:B)THHEE &
RESWEBRENIINBEE Y E
WIHE  WRHREHRES% (=
T—N\F: E)IEERESHH
BRE - WEHBEEEE 2
BEEBHSAZINEHE/RE
5% REBEFRZFIEEBEB
40,58 4 4986,00078 7T (— T —
J\E &) o
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, and bank loans. It is the
Group’s policy to keep a portion of its financial assets and
financial liabilities at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and HIBOR arising from the Group’s
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s variable-rate
bank balances and bank loans. The analysis is prepared
assuming the variable-rate bank balance and bank loans
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50-basis point on bank
loans (2018: 50-basis point) and 10-basis point on bank
balances (2018: 10-basis point) increase or decrease in the
interest rates is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest risk internally to key management personal and
represent the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

34. £ T B um

. ERBREEBEERK

& (#)
A = [ B

AREEBRIZF N R B ZIRTT
EHRRRTERABRRSREN
RRER - AKREZRRBRTE
EEXRFRE-—FHEREERSE
AR A2 FEFRERRE
ERR-AEEZHESREMNEK
[\ B 3 B & R X AN SR B DA B TT AT
BZEREEZRITERREL
RITRAFRFBZMERLE -

T OB R E DT Th R IBE A K AN
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

187 5

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

If the interest rate on bank balances had been 10 basis point
(2018: 10 basis point) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post tax loss for the year
would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$18,000 (2018: HK$45,000).

As at 30 April 2018, if the interest rate on bank loans had
been 50 basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post tax loss for the year would
have increased/decreased by approximately HK$24,000.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 30 April 2019, the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position best represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated
a team responsible for the determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 30
April 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 30 April 2019. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. €@ T A @)
34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and M. EREBEEAEERK
Policies (Continued) ® (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FE R kKRB EE @
(Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 30 R-ZE—NAFEMA=+H®W
April 2019 (Continued) EeRBRFRIEERDE
(#8)
12-month
ECLs Life time ECLs
128 A
FEEEE >HBEHEEESE

Simplified

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 approach

FHBER F-RER E=ZER LR (73
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKEO000 HK$000
FAExT FTET TFTER FExT TFTERT

Trade receivables* el E ZE” = = — 2,947 2,947
Financial assets included in 5t A E i & U &
other receivables NeREE
— Normal” — EE° 42,881 = = — 42,881
— Doubtful® — Al &E" — — - - -
Cash and cash equivalents & RIRE&ZEY
— Not yet past due — 1 & 38 Hf 22,483 = — — 22483
65,364 — — 2,947 68,311
—E-NEER

BERERBERQA
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 30
April 2019 (Continued)

* Trade receivables primarily consist of customers from wholesales
of watches in Hong Kong and trading of fertilisers in the PRC. The
Directors monitor their balances on an ongoing basis. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred loss model) on trade
balances individually. Trade receivables in connection with these
customers are also with high credit rating and no past due history.
In addition, the management of the Group considers these assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of default is negligible.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in other
receivables and prepayments is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Maximum exposure as at 30 April 2018

As at 30 April 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which would cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

Trade receivables are due from regular customers with an
appropriate financial strength. The Group did not experience

any significant defaults by the debtors.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high reputation in the Hong

Kong and PRC.

As at 30 April 2018, the Group’s bank balances deposited in
the major five banks in Hong Kong and PRC accounted for

96.25% of cash and cash equivalents of the Group.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

186 &

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

During the vyear, the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$26,893,000 and bore accumulated losses of
HK$65,204,000. As at 30 April 2019, the Group had total
banking facilities of approximately HK$24,020,000, which has
not been drawn down as bank borrowings. The directors of
the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group has
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at

4. €/ T Am

M. EABEEEEZERK
® ()

RENE € bR (@)

TERHEIFERALE SRS -
WF BRERZBFIE - BIKEL
ReERBEHRZ A RS

the end of the reporting period. H o
More than
Less than 3 months to Over Undiscounted Carrying
Financial liabilities cHEE Ondemand 3 months 1 year 1 year cash flows  amount
3fEA L E KRR
RER DSRIEA E1F 1FN0E BeRE HKRHEE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THELT TER THET TEL

As at 30 April 2019
Trade and other
payables
Amount due to
a director of
a subsidiary
Amount due to ultimate
holding company

R-ZZ-NAFEA=1H
B 5 K E AR RIB

AN —RMEB ARz
—REENA

FE A B AR R I X ) R0B

10,754

69,446

As at 30 April 2018 R-E-NFHUA=+H

69,446 69,446

PARY) 2,134

8,620 8,620

80,200 80,200

Trade and other B 5 & H At fE 5118

payables — 65,087 — — 65,087 65,087
Bank loans at weighted % /i 3 5 % % 3.30%

average interest rate STEHRITER

of 3.30% 5,840 - — — 5,840 5,806
Finance lease liabilities g & E & & — 136 367 348 851 827

5,840 65,223 367 348 71,778 71,720
—E-NFFR

E-ERERERAR

18/



o8]
()=
il
1]

RO SN S T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ire M ERR M A

(%)

WM

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

188 &

34b.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 30 April 2018, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amount of these bank loans amounted to HK$5,806,000.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The table below analyses the Group’s bank loans
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of reporting period to the contractual
maturity date.

34. €@ I A @)
M. EREBREEBEERK

& ()
REE € E (@)

B ARBERERGXNRTE
AEFA L X BB B MR E K]
ZEBARA - R -_F— N\FN
A=1+B ZFRTERZKE
IR 7N & 48 #H 735,806,000/ 7T © &8
ZRAKEZHMBAN  EFR
RRITTRAERITEE KA
BRZBIEE - TRBREHARSE
HREGNINHAZHTHMA
REANIHBEANEASE 2
RITEFETOMN -

Maturity Analysis — Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause based
on scheduled repayments

BB oI—ABEARER

Less than 1-2
1 year years
LPM1IE 1E2F
HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TET
30 April 2018 —E-N\E
MA=+H 5,840 —

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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RER

5L E ReEmE fREE
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 35.
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Interest
payable
S FR
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 May 2018 R=ZFE—-\FHH—H —
Financing cash flows BERSRE (128)
Non-cash changes: RS EH :

Finance costs A& B AR 128
At 30 April 2019 R-ZE-NAFHA=+H —
At 1 May 2017 R-_ZE—+tFHHA—H =
Financing cash flows MERESRE (672)
Non-cash changes: IR E

Finance costs Bh & Bk 2R 572

Inception of new finance leases ¥ &t & 8 & 5 14 =
At 30 April 2018 RZE—-—N\FOA=+H =
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 36.

During the year, the Group acquired a new yacht with a total
consideration of HK$14,000,000 which included the purchase
price and directly attributable costs. The net cash payment for the
purchase is HK$10,000,000 after deduction of an exchange
allowance of HK$4,000,000 for an old yacht. The carrying value of
the old yacht at the date of exchange is HK$1,853,000 and a gain
on disposal of HK$2,147,000 was recognised in the profit or loss.

METHEENEBYHER

TR AKERERDELE AR
HEHT BERASMIERSES-
RETHELECABEREAKEAH
ReREXRTHRERERI B/
ARAETREBEOBABELTHE

EZHeERECBE -

Obligations
under finance

leases Bank loans Total
mERE

B RTEXR et

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000

TH&T FAT TH&T

827 5,806 6,633

(827) (5,806) (6,761)

— — 128

438 19,578 16,013

(465) (9,769) (10,806)

— — 572

854 — 854

827 5,806 6,633

TEFRRERS

RAEEA XEENLLRE
14,000,000/ 7T U g T — & 5 2% #E -
ZREREHBEEBREEEEKA -
£ B & 9E BB R 5 B 154,000,000
Bk ARBEXNNRESFEAR
10,000,0007% JT ° & % fE 2 BR H B K
% 5 H 5 41,853,0007 7T © B & AT
B 22,147,000 TR I8 A HERR ©
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(i)

with related parties:

Commission income received from related
parties (note (a))

Commission income received from a related
party (note (b))

Commission income (note (b))

Commission income (note (c))

Advances from ultimate holding company

Purchase from a related party (note (d))

Sales to a related party (hote (d))

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the

reporting period:

Amount due from a related party (note (a))
Advance receipt from a related party (note (b))

Prepayment to a related party (hote (b))
Prepayment to a related party (note (c))
Amount due to a related party (hote (c))
Amount due to ultimate holding company

Amount due from a related party (note (d))
Amount due to a related party (hote (d))
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In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
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For the year ended 30 April 2019 & & —F —

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Receivables and payables from/(to) the above related parties
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of the amounts due from/(to) related parties
approximated to their fair values and are denominated in
Renminbi (2018: Renminbi and HK$) except for amount due
to ultimate holding company which is denominated in HKS.

Notes:

The related parties represent the entities which are controlled by
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. The Group
had entered into arrangements for the purchases of crude glycerin
and public consumption products from independent third party
suppliers to be sold to these entities. During the year, the invoiced
amounts of the sales of these products to these related parties
amounted to approximately HK$7,044,000 (2018: HK$714,000).
As the Group is considered to be acting as agent in respect of
these purchase and sale transactions, the Group recognised
commission income of HK$570,000 (2018: HK$32,000) in respect
of these transactions involving the related parties for acting as
agent in the sales and purchases of crude glycerin and public
consumption products.

The related party is an entity of which the controlling shareholder is
a cousin of the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder. The
Group had entered into arrangements for the purchases of
fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers from independent
suppliers to be sold to the entity. During the year, such sales to the
related party amounted to approximately HK$2,815,000 (2018:
HK$1,085,000). As the Group is considered to be acting as agent
in respect of these purchase and sale transactions, the Group
recognised commission income of HK$297,000 (2018:
HK$106,000) for acting as agent in the sales and purchases of
fertilisers and other related products.

During the year, the Group also had entered into arrangements for
the purchases of fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers
from the related party to be sold to independent third party
customers. Such purchases from the related party for the year
amounted to approximately HK$316,629,000 (2018: Nil). As the
Group is considered to be acting as agent in respect of these
purchase and sale transactions, the Group recognised commission
income of HK$9,686,000 (2018: Nil) for acting as agent in the sales
and purchases of fertilisers and other related products.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(i)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) During the year, the Group had entered into arrangements for the
purchases of fertilisers such as urea and compound fertilisers from
a related party, which is controlled by the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company, to be sold to independent third party
customers. Such purchases from the related party for the year
amounted to approximately HK$186,892,000 (2018:
HK$49,013,000). As the Group is considered to be acting as agent
in respect of these purchase and sale transactions, the Group
recognised commission income of HK$5,526,000 (2018:
HK$1,357,000) for acting as agent in these sales and purchases of
fertilisers and other related products.

(d) The related parties represent the entities which are controlled by
the then directors of the Company. The abovementioned entities
do not constitute related parties of the Company following the
resignation of certain directors after 28 September 2017.

(ii)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Salaries, bonus, other allowances and benefits % 4 ~ TE4L « H 28L&

in kind
Retirement benefit costs — Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme

B =

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.
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BERERMFIZEEZEE  25BR
BETFTBYE =-"AEF -AFEAHM
B 75 B 5% 55 $R B8 & ¥8 2 49186,892,000
B L (== — )\ :49,013,000/8 7t ) °
HRASERZEBEERIHEAR
BATE BAKEEAZSER KA
tEBEREENREAMBERNM
£ W A 55,526,000/ T (ZF — )\ & :
1,357,000/ 7T) °

ERB TR AR R ERHERZS
ER-RN_ZE—tFAA-TN\H
CETERHER LAEBITHE
ARRA R BEETT

i

B2

TE2EEASHM

EFREMIBERABRAS
EROFHET -

2019 2018
—E2-hF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET

8,583

49 72
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38. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38. €I B2 A ¥ EEBHK

INSTRUMENTS
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRIAAARAEFE S TR 2 AFEE
of the Group’s financial instruments: SER:
Assets measured at fair value: BEATEFEZEE:
2019 —E2—hE
Fair value measurement using
AFEFEFBR
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs  Valuation technique(s) and
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) key input(s)
WEBHE EATHEE EAFTUTEER
ZRE BAHE BAZE
(B—#) (E=H) (=) HERMRTZBAHE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THER THER TERT THEX
Financial assets at fair value BRATEGAEMEZE Based on discounted cash
through other comprehensive WEreREE flows that capture the
income present value of future
expected cash flows
derived from the
underlying assets
ERFEABEENRR
BHBRERENBEN
HERERE
Financial assets at fair value BATEFAERN SR Based on the value
through profit or loss BE provided by the

insurance company

ERRBAARKNER

—E-NEER '| QS
- BEERARAT



o8]
()=
il
1]

38.

194 5

"Val

NOTES TO THE CONSOL

a! AW TNT?

\ ) Y ¥
WA G

IDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B % ¥R R MY A (4R)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2019 EHZE—ZE—NFMNA=+HILFE

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments: (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

2018

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
REET%S
ZHE
(F—&)
HK$'000
THT

Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABENER
through profit or loss BE

During the year ended 30 April 2019, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for the financial assets. The Group did not
have any financial liabilities and financial assets measured at fair
value under Level 3 as at 30 April 2019 and 2018.
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TRAUPAEESMT A2 AFET

BAFEAEZEE:: (B)
—E-N\F

Fair value measurement using

AFEHEHH

Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs  Valuation technique(s) and
(Level 2) (Level 3) key input(s)
BAUBE EATIHR
BWAHE AR
(E=H) (B=F) RERMREEGARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET

RBEE-_ZT-—NFHA=THILFE
N eMEEZF —REFE _HAF
BiftE M e - JREeE A o8
BE=ZH - RZE—NLEE=ZZT—N
FMA=1TH AXEETEEWERD
FTEFAEZCCHABREREEMLR
BB -
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39. COMPARATIVES

Certain comparative balances presented or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform
with current year’s presentation.

The comparative balances in relation to other accruals and
payables and trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments
have been reclassified to conform with current year’s presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of cash flows and in notes 20 and 23. In the current
year, the Group recognises the amounts prepaid by the Group by
endorsing bills receivables to the suppliers of fertiliser raw materials
and fertiliser products as prepayments and continues to recognise
the bills receivables as the bills are endorsed on a full-recourse
basis. Other payables are recognised upon the endorsing of the
bills, to reflect the Group’s obligations under the recourse terms.
Comparative figures are restated, including in notes 20 and 23,
accordingly.

In addition, the Group, which has operations in the PRC, regards
the Renminbi as the functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC. Therefore, disclosures on the trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables denominated in foreign
currencies in notes 20 and 23 are restated accordingly to exclude
balances denominated in Renminbi which were held by the PRC
subsidiaries.

39. Lk E R

HAVBRRAEZIRBEZETHL
RERCENDBRUREAEFEZR
575 o

HisfEst 2R RENFEREKE S
HIE - EMERFERENREZL
RERDETOBURTAEA MBI
MEREEE S RERNFE20 %23 A7
BHAFEZENAR - RAEE K
EEBEASEREREREMRERE®D
1 8 7 WO ER A B U 2R 4% 1 A TR 3B
MRAEEEMNRIE WEERRE
KWZE ARZEZEREZERERE
EEE - HMENMAEREZEEER
R ARMAEBEBRERET
B & {E o 48 FE b & 8 7 72 ff 520 &2 28
RE o

AN AEERTEERLEXBAHK
ARG SR KB EZHERA N
WRE B o FE Ut - 3 B 7 E20 % 23
RIASNESIERN BB E 5 R EAMEK
RIBIANE 5 R H A A 5T & HE
FEE S - ABERR P BIF B 2 R 55 B BA
AR EMNAEER -
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

Particulars of issued

Place and date of incorporation/ share capital/

Name establishment registered capital
o BRIRE/

a8 EMARYL/ IR S EMERZFHE

Directly held
EERE
Tic Tac International Company  British Virgin Islands (“BVI), us$2
Limited 1 July 2014
mEERERAR EBRLES e
—F-mELA-H
POI Limited BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1
EBERAS - 1ET
—E—tF+_A-thH
Indirectly held
BEREE
City Great Limited Hong Kong, 25 January 2007 HK$1
HWERRBAA E% “ZE+E-HA-thA 18T
Fulham Corporation Limited Hong Kong, 28 May 2012 HK$1
FERRAA BB —E-_FRAZTN\A 18T
Jenus Top International Limited  Hong Kong, 30 June 2004 HK$300,000
MERBRERAF B —ETWEAA=TH 300,000/ 70
Sun Step Asia Limited Hong Kong, 17 June 2006 HK$500,000
BEDMERAR BB ZTERFEANATEH 500,000 &
Tic Tac Time Company Limited  Hong Kong, 28 July 1997 HK$3,000\,OOO
MEBRARAA EE —ANEFELAZTARB 3,000,000 7T
Treasure Ascent International ~ Hong Kong, 22 October 2008 HK$500,000
Limited
ESBBRERAR EFE —TENFTA-T-H 500,000 7T
Prosper One Industrial BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1
Investment Limited
ﬁ% tﬁ% E
—t&+ZR=TAhAH
Prosper One Commerce BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1
Investment Limited
EBERES - 1ET
“T—t&+ZAZtNH
Prosper One Eco-Technology ~ Hong Kong, 23 February 2017 HK$10,000
Limited
B RAMBRERAA B —F—+F-A-+=H 10,0007 7
Prosper One Fertilizer Limited ~ Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HK$1
2 EXERAA BB ZZ—t&+ZAZThE 18T
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RMEMRARR T BB AR 27

[

Equity interest held

kg
2019

—B-hF

%ﬁﬂmTo

2018

—N\F

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

TREBREELHY

Investment holding in Hong Kong
REBREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

NEBREZK

Wholesale of watches in
Hong Kong
F%%ﬁ$%%&?

Club membership holding in
Hong Kong
REARAEENEH

Provision of management services
in Hong Kong

REBREEERSE

Wholesale of watches in
Hong Kong

W%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ?

Retail of watches in Hong Kong
REBREMETE

Provision of management services
in Hong Kong

REBRUEE RS

Investment holding in Hong Kong
REBREEZR
Investment holding in Hong Kong
REBREEKR
Investment holding in Hong Kong
REBREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong
REEREER

'S: 4L

o8 W
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. KA EEWEA T

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 15 (@)
Particulars of issued
Place and date of incorporation/ share capital/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital Equity interest held place of operation
o BORE/ X
A8 EMARYL/ IR A S HEMER2FE QQE?HQE ot TEXBREELH
—g-hf C—2NF
Indirectly held
MRS
Prosper One Resources Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HK$1 100% Investment holding in Hong Kong

Commerce Limited
E—ERESAERAA
Prosper One Well Rich

EF ZE—+tF+-A=TNH
Hong Kong, 29 December 2017

187
HKS$1

REBREER
100% Trading of public consumption

Commerce Limited

products in Hong Kong

B EHESERAR BB —T—tF+-ZA=thAH 187 REBEEABRHEMER
WEREE - RRBEERAR PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% Trading of fertilisers products in
29 January 2018 PRC
HE - AREEAA 50,000,007 7 R EEEEHE R
—Z-\¥—-R=+NA
WERE—ELREARAR  PRC, limited liabilty HK$50,000,000 100% Trading of fertiisers products in
29 January 2018 PRC
B BRE 50,000,000/ 7T IR BE EIEHE R
“Z-N\F-A=thA
WEE— (L ITRRAERAT PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% Trading of fertilisers products in
29 January 2018 PRC
HE - EREEAA 50,000,007 7 R EEEEHE R
—Z-\¥—-R=+NA
LWEE—EEESERARA PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% Trading of fertilisers products in
29 January 2018 C
B BRE 50,000,000/ 7T R B E EIEKE
“Z-N\F-A=tAhA
EfE—=HE58R PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% Trading of public consumption
(‘EF E=.'.§—") 29 January 2018 products in PRC
HE - BEREAEAA 50,000,000/ & RREEEAREELER
—Z-N\F-A=+NA
" J[EF9% —is under the process of deregistration as at 30 April 2019. " R-_E—HAFUA=+H EME—I

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the

FERHEER °

ARBEZERR ERINFZARF
MEARETEXEASE ZXERE

results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other ERAEBE-ARAEERAE HIH
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, B AR 2 FBHEEARFBARIT
result in particulars of excessive length. £ AR -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at WMENEA —hEk=

30 April 2019 and 2018 or at any time during both years.

)\i@ﬂ:—k Eiﬁéﬁﬁfligﬁﬂﬁﬁ
RESEMKEEZEBRES
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41.

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries
— investment in subsidiaries
— amounts due from subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment
Rental deposits

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Annual Report 2019
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30/4/2019
—E-NEF
mA=+H

HK$°000
FET

AN
2 © |

30/4/2018
—E-N\F
mMA=+H

HK$’000
TET

21,447
84,780

106,227

45
10

106,282

2,365
1,266

3,631

109,913

8,000
98,302

106,302

3,611

3,611

109,913
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

Balance at 1 May 2017

Total comprehensive expense

Loss for the year

Deemed contribution arising from
imputed interest on amounts
due from subsidiaries

Balance at 30 April 2018 and
1 May 2018

Total comprehensive expense

Loss for the year

Reversal of deemed contribution
upon early repayment by
subsidiaries and capitalisation
of the amounts due from
subsidiaries

Balance at 30 April 2019

FEHMAXARE
FRER

B Y P B A Rl 2 3R
EBFEEEZ
BIETE

RZZB-N\FWA=+H
R—Z—-—NFHA—H
g

2HMAXAE
FABE

B A RRREEREBIE
B BB R R B R
NCIE- N (o0

R=F-NEMA=1A

Share
premium
B 10 E
HK$’000
TR

118,368

118,368

118,368

M. AR A MBRRKRRE

(%&)
KRRz #ERE
Capital Other Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
EXGE HttFE 23 ER @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FExT FH&T FH&T
66,887 — (21,907) 163,348
— — (569,358) (59,358)
— (5,688) — (5,688)
66,887 (5,688) (81,265) 98,302
— — (35,783) (35,783)
— 5,688 — 5,688
66,887 — (117,048) 68,207
—E-NEFFR

BERERBERQA
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
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a
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FIVE-YEAR FINANC

IAL

FEFEHBFHME

the last five financial years is set out below:

RESULT

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other (expenses) incomes
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expense

Operating profit (loss)
Finance costs

Profit (loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense) credit

Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive expense

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FEBNER)
LR

FEXEKEGIX) AR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

S

W Ommy

Bk

S

Rt

@R, Annual Report 2019
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2015
“E-AF
HK$'000
THT

442,955
(285,780)

157,175
(407)

(97,669)
(30,732)

28,373
(555)

27,818
(7,795)

20,023

20,023

16,170
3,853

20,023

2015
—T-AfF
HK$'000
THET

173,738
(128,853)

44,885

Y,

Y ¢

DY X ¥
K oh ! A ¥
‘.\ u.’r:"ﬁ' doll npy

P AV W

SUMMARY

N e~

Sp

ATAT Seis
=,

AEEBENBAVHRFENRENUNREE
RBBEZHEHINMT

Year ended 30 April
BEZMA=+HLEE
2016 2017 2018
ZE-RE 2+t 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET
321,322 283,211 315,501
(206,434) (192,893) (211,409)
114,888 90,318 104,092
(489) 9 &8
(105,411)  (102,817) (92,349)
(20,479) (15,627) (26,902)
(11,491) (28,117) (15,106)
(667) (441) (572)
(12,158) (28,558) (15,678)
(491) 867 (4,570)
(12,649 (27,691) (20,248)
- - (17)
(12,649) (27,691) (20,265)
(12,649 (27,691) (20,265)
(12,649 (27,691) (20,265)
EERERE
For the year ended 30 April
BENA=TRLEE
2016 2017 2018
“E-RE ZE—+tF —Z)\F
HK$\'OCp HK&B\’OOﬁO HK$\’0070
THL THEL THT
203,025 172,096 255,313
(44,422 (41,184) (144,666)
168,603 130,912 110,647

2019
—E2-nE
HK$'000
TERT

202,349
(112,744)

89,605
1,913
(80,515)
(32,508)
(1,000)

(22,505)
(128)

(22,633)
(4,260)

(26,893)
(153)

(27,046)

(27,046)

(27,046)

2019
—B-1E
HK$'000
FAR

235,015
(149,227)

85,788
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